CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

Mayor Dave Potter, Council Members Jeff Baron, All meetings are held in the City Council Chambers
Karen Ferlito, Bobby Richards, and Carrie Theis East Side of Monte Verde Street
Contact: 831.620.2000 www.ci.carmel.ca.us Between Ocean and 7th Avenues

REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, May 3, 2022

THIS MEETING IS VIATELECONFERENCE AND IN-PERSON AT CITY HALL

Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 has allowed local legislative bodies to
hold public meetings via teleconference and to make public meetings accessible
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to
observe and to address the local legislative body. Also, see the Order by the Monterey
County Public Health Officer issued March 17, 2020. T he health and well-being of our
community is the top priority for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea.

To that end, this meeting will be held via teleconference and in-person in the City
Council Chambers at City Hall located on Monte Verde Street between Ocean and
Seventh Avenue. To participate via teleconference click the following link to attend via
Zoom (or copy and paste link in your browser): https://ci-carmel-ca-
us.zoom.us/j/88124858589?pwd=dDJJZWxjZjREUVc4V3gvcVZFbGdIQT09; Meeting ID:
881 2485 8589; Passcode: 464629; Dial +1 253 215 8782

To participate in this meeting in-person in the City Council Chambers, the public must
show proof of vaccination (including virus booster) and wear a face covering at all
times. Seating will be limited and available on a first come first served basis. The
meeting will also be web-streamed on the City’s website.

The public can also email comments to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Comments must be
received 2 hours before the meeting in order to be provided to the legislative body.
Comments received after that time and up to the beginning of the meeting will be added
to the agenda and made part of the record.

OPEN SESSION
4:30 PM

CALL TO ORDERAND ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS

A. Community Vibrancy



B. Proclamation recognizing May 15-21, 2022 as National Public Works Week "Ready
and Resilient"

C. Introduction to Winter & Co. and early guidance from Council on the Design
Traditions 1.5 Project

PUBLIC APPEARANCES

Members of the public are entitled to speak on matters of municipal concern not on the agenda during Public
Appearances. Each person's comments shall be limited to 3 minutes, or as otherwise established by the Chair.
Matters not appearing on the agenda will not receive action at this meeting and may be referred to staff. Persons
are not required to provide their names, and it is helpful for speakers to state their names so they may be identified
in the minutes of the meeting.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. City Administrator Announcements
B. City Attorney Announcements

C. Council Member Announcements

ORDERS OF BUSINESS

Orders of Business are agenda items that require City Council, Board or Commission discussion, debate, direction
to staff, and/or action.

1. Consider applications submitted as part of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Council
Discretionary Grant Program and provide funding recommendations to staff

2. Receive the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Recommended Budget

Approve Fiscal Year 2021/22 carry-over and proposed Fiscal Year 2022/23 Capital
Improvement Plan projects, and provide direction to staff

4. Consideration of whether or not to reconsider Permanent Encroachment Permit EN
21-272 (Fountain) to retain a fence constructed in the public right of way

5. Receive areport on the process required to consider a permanent outdoor seating
program in the public right of way, and provide direction to staff on whether or not to
proceed with the effort as a City Council top priority project

PUBLIC HEARINGS

6. CONTINUE TO JUNE 7, 2022 - Consideration of a recommendation from the
Historic Resources Board to the City Council that the City Council enter into a Mills
Act Historical Property Contract (MA 21-238, L'Auberge Carmel) with Esperanza
Carmel Commercial, LLC for the historic ‘Sundial Lodge’ now known as L’Auberge
Carmel located on Monte Verde 2 northeast of 7th Avenue (APN 010-191-005)

7. Resolution 2022-041 adopting Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Fee schedule for
Administrative Services, Community Planning and Building, Public Safety and Public
Works Services

FUTURE AGENDAITEMS
ADJOURNMENT

8. Correspondence Received



This agenda was posted at City Hall, Monte Verde Street between Ocean Avenue and 7th Avenue, outside the Park
Branch Library, NE corner of Mission Street and 6th Avenue, the Carmel-by-the-Sea Post Office, 5th Avenue between
Dolores Street and San Carlos Street, and the City's webpage http://www.ci.carmel.ca.us in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL RECEIVED AFTER THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA

Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda, received
after the posting of the agenda will be available for public review at City Hall located on Monte Verde Street between Ocean and
Seventh Avenues during regular business hours.

SPECIAL NOTICES TO PUBLIC

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
the City Clerk's Office at 831-620-2000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to ensure that reasonable arrangements can be
made to provide accessibility to the meeting (28CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II).


http://www.ci.carmel.ca.us

PUBLIC WORKS

READY

RESI[IENT

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK
MAY 1521, 2022

Apua,

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
CITY COUNCIL

A PROCLAMATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
RECOGNIZING MAY 15-21, 2022 AS NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK
“Ready and Resilient”

WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities, parks, and services that are of vital
importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, high quality of life, and well-
being of the people of the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea; and,

WHEREAS, streets, facilities, parks, and infrastructure services could not be provided and maintained without
the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, managers, and employees at all levels of government
volunteers, and the private sector, who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, and protecting our nation’s
transportation, storm drain system, public buildings, green infrastructure, and other structures and facilities
essential for our citizens; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in the City of Carmel-by-the-
Sea to gain knowledge of and to maintain a progressive interest and understanding of the importance of
public works programs and services in their respective communities; and,

WHEREAS, the year 2022 marks the 62nd annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the American
Public Works Association.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED THAT I, Dave Potter, Mayor of the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, do
hereby designate the week of May 15 — 21, 2022 as National Public Works Week. | urge all citizens to join
with representatives of the American Public Works Association to pay tribute to our public works
professionals, managers, and employees, and to recognize the substantial contributions they make to protect
our City’s health, safety, and quality of life.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City to be affixed at the City
of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA this 3rd day of May, 2022.

Dave Potter, Mayor



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
CITY COUNCIL
Staff Report

May 3, 2022
EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
SUBMITTED BY: Brandon Swanson, Community Planning & Building Director

APPROVED BY: Chip Rerig, City Administrator

Introduction to Winter & Co. and early guidance from Council on the Design
Traditions 1.5 Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Meet the team from Winter & Co., and provide early guidance on the Design Traditions 1.5 Project

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

On March 1st, 2022, Council approved a contract with Winter & Co. to update the City's Design Guidelines
and Zoning Code through the Design Traditions 1.5 (DT-1.5) Project. This effort will preserve and honor
the existing framework of these successful guiding documents, while updating them to ensure they will
serve the City for another 10 to 20 years. In total, the project will take approximately one (1) year, and will
include numerous community workshops, public hearings, and meetings with the Council's appointed
"Steering Committee".

SUBJECT:

Work on DT-1.5 began almost immediately after Council approved the contract in March, and significant progress
has already been made laying the groundwork for a successful project. From March 12th through March 14th,
Winter & Co. conducted a site visit here in Carmel-by-the-Sea. This visit included all-day working sessions with
staff, a productive kickoff meeting with the Steering Committee, informal introductions to Council Members, and
walking/driving tours of the Village.

Nore' Winter, the Company's founder and principal, is making another site visit from May 3rd though May 4th to
continue progress on laying the groundwork for DT-1.5. The team will also begin crafting in-person exercises for
the first community workshop which will take place some time this June. As part of this visit, the DT-1.5 team
would like to formally introduce Winter & Co. to Council and the public and get feedback on two (2) high level
questions that will help guide the project over the coming year. In addition to direction from Council, this will also
allow members of the public the opportunity to provide early feedback on the project's direction.

With that in mind, the DT-1.5 team is seeking feedback from Council on two (2) broad questions. Of course,
Council is welcome to share any other thoughts about the project's direction with the DT-1.5 Team as well.

QUESTIONS:



1. What are some key design issues or emerging design trends that the DT-1.5 Project needs to address?
2. What will make the DT-1.5 Project a success?

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

PRIOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

None specific to this agenda item.

ATTACHMENTS:



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA

CITY COUNCIL
Staff Report
May 3, 2022
ORDERS OF BUSINESS
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

SUBMITTED BY: Ashlee Wright, Director, Libraries & Community Activities

APPROVED BY: Chip Rerig, City Administrator

Consider applications submitted as part of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Council
SUBJECT: Discretionary Grant Program and provide funding recommendations to staff

RECOMMENDATION:

Consider applications submitted as part of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Council Discretionary Grant Program
and provide funding recommendations to staff.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The Council Discretionary Grant Program Purpose, Eligibility Criteria and Public Benefit

Various entities, including school districts and nonprofit organizations, play an important role in providing
services and programs that benefit and enhance the well-being of the Carmel-by-the-Sea community. The
City has a history of allocating funding to a myriad of environmental and social programs and projects, and,
on January 3, 2017, Council adopted the City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program (Policy C17-01).
The intent of this policy is to provide a clear and consistent framework for both the organizations seeking
funding from the City as well as for the Council in making funding decisions based on the demonstrated
public benefit to the Carmel-by-the-Sea community derived from the use of the City grant funds.

In accordance with the Council-adopted policy, an organization must meet the following criteria to be eligible
to receive funding: (1) located within the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea or provide community, environmental or
social services to the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea; (2) constituted as a nonprofit community-based
501(c) organization or be a Carmel school; (3) directly provide the community service(s) for which City
funds are sought; (4) not have outstanding debt due to the City; and (5) not be financially dependent upon
receiving City support to meet the organization’s annual budget and operational requirements.

In keeping with the spirit of the eligibility criteria, the program specifically excludes the use of City funds to
support political activities; to pay for high school or college scholarships; to pay debt; to purchase alcoholic
beverages; to pay for travel, meals, lodging, or entertainment expenses; to support services that are
primarily commercial, religious or political in nature; to pay for permanent improvements to any non-City
owned structure or property so that it becomes an integral part of the real property; and to pay for general
operating expenses or expenses to support ongoing operation of the applicant, including, but not limited to,



salaries, utilities, and rent expenses.

Review Process

Library and Community Activities Director Ashlee Wright and Executive Assistant Leslie Fenton conducted
the preliminary review of grant applications for completeness and to ensure that the criteria stipulated in
Policy C17-01 were met.

The Summary of Grant Applications (Attachment 2), indicates the name of the applicant, the amount of the
request, a brief description of the program or project seeking funding, and a determination as to whether the
applicant met the eligibility requirements as specified within the adopted policy.

Three applications that were received and reviewed by staff were not included for Council consideration.
One application from Lu Ganiban was incomplete and did not include any required attachments. The other
two applications from Monterey County Film Commission and United Way of Monterey County were not
included as those requested funds have been included as line items in the operating budget per direction
from Council during the last budget planning cycle.

Staff seeks direction from Council regarding which responsive applications, if any, to fund as part of the
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City received 8 applications requesting a total of $24,500 in funding. The Fiscal Year 2022-2023
Proposed Budget includes $20,000 for the discretionary grant program. Staff seeks direction regarding the
total number of applications to fund. The disbursement of the funds to the respective organizations will not
occur until after the City Council adopts the FY 2022-23 budget and after the start of the fiscal year on July
1, 2022.

PRIOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

Council adopted the City Council Discretionary Grant Program (Policy 2017-01) on January 3, 2017 and
approved corresponding Resolution 2017-010.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment #1 - Policy C17-01 Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program
Attachment #2 - Summary of Grant Applications

Attachment #3 - Carmel Heritage Society

Attachment #4 - Carmel Padre Parents

Attachment #5 - Carmel Residents Association

Attachment #6 - Carmel Youth Center

Attachment #7 - Community Human Services

Attachment #8 - Food Bank for Monterey County

Attachment #9 - Monterey Peninsula Ballet Theatre

Attachment #10 - Pacific Repertory Theater



City of Carmel-by-the-Sea

CITY COUNCIL
DISCRETIONARY FUNDS GRANT PROGRAM

POLICY 2017-01

Office of the City Administrator
Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921




Attachment 1

GENERAL

INTRODUCTION

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea recognizes and appreciates the value of local
organizations that provide community, environmental and social services that benefit the
City's community and enhance the well-being of its citizens. Community service is
defined as voluntary work performed that supports the wellbeing of the citizens of
Carmel-by-the-Sea and serves a public purpose. As such, each year, the City Council
may set aside discretionary funds to support a City Council Discretionary Funds Grant
Program that supports such purposes. Organizations that serve the community of
Carmel-by-the-Sea are eligible to apply. The functions or services to be provided should
be of such a nature that the interests of the City are better served by an agreement with
a private nonprofit organization than by the performance of the services or functions by
the City. Every organization that applies will be considered, but not all groups may
receive funding.

PROGRAM PURPOSE AND DESCRIPTION

The City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program serves as a funding resource to
nonprofit organizations or schools that provide programs or services that benefit the
Carmel-by-the-Sea community. With clearly defined goals, criteria, and evaluation
measures, the program will result in a granting process that:

» Provides equal opportunity for all interested community service providers to be
considered for funding

= Aligns funding requests with the City's budget process
+ |dentifies the community benefit associated with funded programs or services

» Establishes a reporting process that demonstrates transparency and accountability
for public funds

The City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program is discretionary, meaning that it is
up to the Council as to whether or not to accept applications for this program each year.
Due to limited funds, Council has the option to not accept applications or limit the
amount of funding to be allocated under such a program in any given fiscal year. If the
City decides to administer the program in any given year, requests for funding received
from organizations will be considered only during a specified time period. It is not the
City's intention to fund each request received, but rather to evaluate each proposal and
provide funding to those organizations that most effectively serve the needs and improve
the well-being of the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea.

The City encourages a goal of self-sufficiency for all local organizations and discourages
an over-reliance on its financial assistance to maintain such programs on an ongoing
basis. Therefore, all organizations requesting funds from the City should continue efforts
to develop stable private funding sources.

2|Page



Attachment 1

ELIGIBILITY STANDARDS
ELIGIBILITY

To be eligible for funding, an organization:

¢ Must be located within the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea or provide community,
environmental or social services to the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea

e Must be a nonprofit community based 501(c) organization or a Carmel school
o Must directly provide the community service(s) for which City funds are sought
e Must have no outstanding debt due to the City

e Must not be financially dependent upon receiving City support to meet the
organization’s annual budget and operational requirements

INELIGIBILITY

The City will not provide support to:
o [ndividuals
e For-profit enterprises

e Special events (special event organizers are encouraged to review the City's special
event grant funding application guidelines and apply for grants under that process)

PUBLIC PURPOSE

By law, all public funds, however awarded, must be used for a public purpose. In
general, a public purpose is defined as an activity or service that is open and accessible
to all members of the public regardless of race, creed, gender, sexual orientation,
religious affiliation, etc., without restriction, and which does not promote a particular
religion. It is therefore imperative for the organizations requesting funding through this
program to clearly demonstrate the benefit that funded programs or services will have on
the community of Carmel-by-the-Sea.

City grant funds may not be used for any of the following activities:

e To support political activities (including, but not limited to, lobbying, campaigns, or
endorsements) and/or private interests

e Scholarships to high-school or college students

e The payment of outstanding debts

e The purchase of alcoholic beverages

e Travel, meals, lodging, or entertainment expenses

¢ Services which are primarily commercial, religious or political in nature

¢ Permanent improvements to any non — City owned structure or property so that it
becomes an integral part of the real property and its removal would do harm to the
building or land, including those improvements that are bolted, nailed, screwed or
wired into the wall, ceiling or floor

3|Page



Attachment 1

e (General operating expenses or expenses to support on-going operation of the
applicant, including, but not limited to, salaries, utilities, and rent expenses

DEMONSTRATING PUBLIC BENEFIT

Circumstances under which it is appropriate for the City to grant public funds include the
following:

e When an organization provides a service that complements or enhances a service
that the City also provides

¢ When there is an identifiable secondary, or indirect, benefit to the City
e When the organization provides a service the City could provide, but chooses not to

The following chart contains examples that illustrate public benefit:

Relationship to City Programs | Example Benefit

Complementary service Donation to the Tree The Tree Foundation has
Foundation in return for | specialized knowledge about
agreement to replace planting trees suitable for the

trees that have been area. New trees will enhance
removed by the City property values. The service
due to disease will also increase the number

of planted trees beyond that
which the City would be able

to plant.
Demonstrable benefit Youth organization’s After-school programs can
after-school program boost academic performance,

reduce risky behaviors,
promote physical health, and
provide a safe, structured
environment for the children
of working parents.

Service the City could provide, Homeless shelter and | Programs such as this help
but does not placement programs end the cycle of
homelessness.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

All eligible entities seeking funding shall complete an application. Eligible entities include
any Carmel school, or any nonprofit agency/organization either located within the City of
Carmel-by-the-Sea or providing services to City of Carmel-by-the-Sea residents. The
application must include a full explanation of the proposed used of the money and
include a detailed budget and be submitted to the City by the specified deadline. City
staff will then review the application for completeness and compliance with the
evaluation criteria. Deadlines for funding requests correspond to the City’s budgeting
cycle. The application process for an upcoming fiscal year will open early in February
and close in March so as to give the City Council sufficient time to include the funding in
the fiscal year budget, if it so chooses to administer the program that year.

Grants are limited to schools, or organizations that are designated a 501(c) nonprofit
organization by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Formal nonprofit status must be up
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Attachment 1

to date and submitted as requested on the application. 501(c) organizations must be in
good standing with the IRS. Nonprofit organizations may apply for funding only if the
Project/Program serves a public purpose and follows the laws governing use of public
funds.

PROCESS

All interested nonprofit organizations must complete an application form, which will
include the following information:

Name and address of the nonprofit organization (applicant is required to list the local
branch if it represents a national or statewide organization)

Description of the community project/program/service provided and the benefit to the
community that will be provided, including the number of Carmel-by-the-Sea
community members served by both the organization and the specific
project/program/service for which grant funds are sought

Amount of funds requested
Proposed project and budget plan for the use of the grant funds

A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on the organization's
annual sources of revenue received

Proof of 501(c) status with a copy of the letter from the IRS as applicable

The past two year’s financial statements, including the current year, with balance
sheets, sources of revenues, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of
revenue that is used for administration, salaries and program costs

Applicant(s) receiving City grant funds in the past must indicate when the funds were
received, the amount received, and document how the funds were utilized

The application must be completed by an officer or employee of the organization that
is applying for funding and authorized by the organization to complete the application

Incomplete applications and applications not submitted by the deadline will not be
considered.

EVALUATION OF APPLICATIONS

Following the application deadline, the City will review proposals from applicants.
Applicants will be asked to send one representative to attend a public meeting to
address the City Discretionary Funds Grant subcommittee, answer questions, and
demonstrate the public benefit of the funds requested. All proposals will be evaluated to
ascertain which nonprofit organizations will best serve the community of Carmel.
Factors considered include, but are not limited to:

®

The organization’s documentation of its current nonprofit status

The extent to which the organization provides a benefit to the Carmel-by-the-Sea
community, including demonstrating the number of residents or businesses served

The organization's history of providing satisfactory services to the community of
Carmel-by-the-Sea as applicable

The organization’s submittal of financial statements prepared using an appropriate
method of accounting that demonstrates sound financial management practices

The organization’s approach to monitoring and evaluate the success of the
project/program/service provided

5|Page
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EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

Nonprofit organizations selected to receive funds will be required to sign and execute an
agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea. If an award of funds is made, a recipient
nonprofit organization will be required to expend grant monies prior to the close of the fiscal
year (June 30) in which it received the funding.

COMPLIANCE

Each awarded entity shall submit a report and proper backup documentation to substantiate that
funds were expended appropriately. The report shall be submitted within 30 days of the end of
the project or no later than June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded. Such
documentation shall include the following:

« Invoices/receipts documenting the expenditure of funds

o A brief summary that explains all expenditures, including how they specifically
benefitted Carmel-by-the-Sea residents, that may also include pictures or other
documentation illustrating the use of the grant funds

e The organization’s progress towards meeting the goals and objectives outlined in the
application, and a schedule of the Project/Program’s revenues/expenditures

If funds are not expended in accordance with the City’s approved purpose, the organization may
be required to refund the granted funds. The City reserves the right to require additional back-
up information to substantiate how funds received from the City were expended. Failure to
spend the funds in a timely manner, to provide proper documentation and/or to utilize the funds
for the intended purpose may jeopardize future funding.
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Applicant

Amount

FY 2021-2022 COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY FUNDS GRANT PROGRAM

Purpose

Meets Eligibility Critera

Carmel Heritage
Society

Requested

The exhibit will feature text and photos documenting some of our notable citizens. We will
celebrate the many people, places and things that contributed to Carmel's creative
environment. A special section will honor the late Betty White and her enormous gifts to the
citizens and animals of Carmel. Also featured will be ongoing cultural institutions like the

YES. The grant supports a one-time event sponsored

$3,000 Forest Theater the Bach Festival and the Sunset Center as well as some of the by this organization.
outstanding writers, artists and photographers who achieved world wide recognition for
their work. We plan to open this exhibit in October 2022 as part of Carmel's annual birthday
celebrations.
S:r;?(tesl Fé?l?bre_ Provide a safe and sober celebration on the eve of Carmel High School's graduation. All
Sober Grad Night $3.000 graduating Seniors are invited to attend at no cost to the students. Potentially 227 YES. The grant supports a one-time event sponsored
’ graduates may attend the event. The grant will be used to offset the estimated cost of $225 |by this organization.
per student for the event.
Carmel Residents
Association Support rental expenses for public programs held at the Sunset Center’s Carpenter Hall. NO. The grant may not be used to support the on-
$3,000 We request being awarded this grant to assist us in our vital work for the citizens of this going operation of the applicant, including, but not
Village. limited to, salaries, utilities, and rent expenses.
Carmel Youth
Center . . . . .
Purchase new cubbies for our newly renovated lobby. We will have a cubby for each child |YES. The grant may be considered as supporting
$3,000 served by our Center, so they may store all of their personal belongings such as general operating expenses; however it would also
’ backpacks, homework, jackets, snacks, etc. These will meet the growing needs of our fund the one-time purchase of chairs and picnic
Center as we accept new children during the new school year and camps. tables.
Community Human
Services General operati rt at Casa de Noche Buena, the Monterey Peninsula’s onl
eneral operating support at Casa de Noche Buena, the Monterey Peninsula’s only NO. The grant may not be used to support the on-
$3.000 emergency homeless shelter for single women and families with children located in oina operation of the applicant. including. but not
’ Seaside. Casa de Noche Buena (CDNB) provides a maximum of 35 shelter beds, going op . > 8pp ’ 9,
: . o . limited to, salaries, utilities, and rent expenses.
depending on the sizes of the families and ages of the children.
Foodbank for
Monterey Count i i i iti i
y y Provide fregh produce, eggs, dairy, lean prote|n§ a'nd (.)ther.nutrltlous foods to City of . |YES. The grant may be considered as supporting
Carmel residents in need at our weekly direct distribution site that takes place at St. Philip’s . ) .
$3,000 general operating expenses; however it would also

Lutheran Church on the 1st and 3rd Fridays of every month and serves City residents of all
ages.

fund the one-time purchase of food.




FY 2021-2022 COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY FUNDS GRANT PROGRAM

Monterey Peninsula
Ballet Theater

Provide dance education and financial aid assistance to youth of various socio-economic
status, while teaching different genres of dance to enhance arts appreciation, establish
teamwork fundamentals, and build a dynamic, healthy community vision. 100% of awarded

NO. The grant may not be used to support the on-

$3,000 funds will be used to support the direct expenses incurred for the Outreach Program giving [going operation of the applicant, including, but not
over 700 children, from underrepresented communities in Monterey County the Opportunity |limited to, salaries, utilities, and rent expenses.
to watch a free Nutcracker performance.
Pacific Repertory
Theatre ; ; ; ; ; P
Funding would be used to purchase items required during the ongoing pandemic, include . .
hand sanitizer, fans, HEPA filters, masks and other required PPE. Also, the spaces where VIES: Tlhe grartl-t Y] 512 congﬁered as.tsuppcI)gtlnlg
SoDA classes are conducted receive professional deep-cleaning services, and grant general operaling expenses, nowever it would aiso
Bty funding subsidizes that. In addition, funding would support expanded marl,<etin efforts el 1D Q7S Wi UETEED @ @2 CEUie:
ding s DA ’ ding pp P 9 and supplies. The grant may not fund scholarships to
during this crucial time, as the community starts to return to a sense of normalcy and .
. . : . high school or college students.
begins to look to re-engage our young people in peer-to-peer in-person activities.
TOTAL FUNDS $24,000

REQUESTED




Attachment 3

— City Council
- Discretionary Grant
== Program

Organization Information

Name of Applicant Organization:Carmel Heritage Society

Name and Position/Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Linda Jaffe, Executive Director
Organization Mailing Address:PO Box 701, Carmel, CA 93921

Telephone Number:8316244447

Email:info@carmelheritage.org

Geographic Area(s) the Organization serves:Local Monterey County and the entire Bay Area

Age groups served by the Organization:0-12, 13-17, 18-24, 25-34, 35-44, 45-54, 55-64, 65 and over
Number of Carmel-by-the-Sea (93921) residents the Organization serves:3,000

Is this Organization incorporated as a Nonprofit Organization?:Yes

Is this Organization a Carmel school?:No

Project/Program Details

Project/Program Name:In Honor of Betty White: Carmel-Home to Creative Minds and Hearts
Amount requested (up to $3,000):$3,000

Please provide a description of the Project, Program, or Service that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant
funding will be used to support.Since the early 20th century artists, writers, actors, musicians and photographers
have made their homes in Carmel. The exhibit will feature text and photos documenting some of our notable
citizens. We will celebrate the many people, places and things that contributed to Carmel's creative environment. A
special section will honor the late Betty White and her enormous gifts to the citizens and animals of Carmel. Also
featured will be ongoing cultural institutions like the Forest Theater the Bach Festival and the Sunset Center as well
as some of the outstanding writers, artists and photographers who achieved world wide recognition for their work.
We plan to open this exhibit in October 2022 as part of Carmel's annual birthday celebrations.

Please provide the project, program, or service objectives that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding
will be used to support.Our mission is to educate and celebrate Carmel's history. Creative people have been
drawn to Carmel for decades and their contributions to our historic legacy is profound. Our main objective is to
explore this history and educate people about the importance of cultural heritage in the history and development of
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Carmel. Attachment 3

Please describe the specific benefit to the Carme-by-the-Sea community that your project, program, or
service will provide, including the target population and number of community members that will be served.
Increasing knowledge and understanding is the primary benefit to the community and this exhibit will explore an
important component of Carmel's history. It will also celebrate and honor the men and women who contributed their
artistic talents over the years to create the extraordinary quality of life we enjoy today. In addition, we will remember
a long-time Carmelite, Betty White. Our target population is all community members as well as visitors from the
greater Bay Area.

Please describe how your organization would use the funding awarded, including equipment or services
that would be purchased and why.Funds will be used to reproduce photos and fabricate text panels that form the

core of the exhibit. In addition, an informative educational brochure will be created for visitors to take home with
them.

Attachments

Please provide the following attachments via email to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Make sure to include the name of
the Organization in the subject line of the email and on all attachments.

- A copy of the Organization's proof of non-profit status, with a copy of the letter from the IRS.
- A detailed, line item budget plan for the project, program, or service's use of the grant funds.

- A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on your organization's annual sources of revenue
received.

- The Organization's past two year's financial statements - including the current year - with balance sheets, sources

of revenue, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of revenue that is used for administration, salaries
and program costs.

Certification and Signature
The Applicant Organization acknowledges and agrees to the following:

- That it is subject to all City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program requirements, including submittal deadlines
and payment disbursements.

- That it will not spend City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funds on ineligible activities/services as
outlined in City Council Policy C16- : City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program.

- The awarding of City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding does not constitute an automatic annual
allocation.

- City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding, if allocated, will be for the sole use as reflected in this
application form.

- As a condition of receiving funds, an agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea in a form and with content
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provided by the City, will be signed and executed by a duly authorized representative of the applicant oRy$AZHI8At 3
- All funds awarded must be spent by the end of the fiscal year (June 30).

- The recipient shall provide a full accounting with documentation on the use of awarded funds within 30 days after
the end of the Project/Program/Service or by June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded.

- The recipient shall return to the City any funds not spent or documented per the signed agreement.
- The City reserves the right to conduct an audit and/or require additional backup information to substantiate how
funds received from the City were expended. Failure to provide proper documentation may jeopardize future

funding.

| certify on behalf of the above named nonprofit applicant organization that | have read, understand and agree that
the aforesaid information is accurate, factual, and current.

Name and Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Linda Jaffe, Executive Director
Organization name:Carmel Heritage Society

Date:03/02/2022
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PROGRAM BUDGET

Carmel Heritage Society

Program Name: 75 Years Later: A Look at Carmel During World War Il

Program Date: August 2020
Request to: Arts Council for Monterey Council

REVENUE

Arts Council
City of Carmel
Carmel Heritage Society

EXPENSES

Graphic Design

Brochure--Design

Photo Reproduction

Lighting

Research and writing of text panels--CHS ED % of salary

Arts4MC  Other Proposals

$5,000

$5,000

$4,500
$820
$680
$2,000
$3,500
$11,500

$3,000

$3,000

Committed Funds TOTAL

$3,500

$3,500 $11,500



Carmel Heritage Society

Income

Year End Donation

Donation

House Tour

Inns Tour

Membership Dues

Product Sales

Other types of Income
Gross Profit

Expense
Books, Subscriptions, Reference

Holiday Party

House Tour

Inns Tour

FMH

Insurance - Liability, D and O
Office

Dues & Subscriptions
Payroll Expenses

Gross Expense

operating surplus/deficit

2022
Budget

$6,000.00
$3,000.00
$26,000.00
$5,000.00
$7,000.00
$1,000.00
$500.00

$48,500.00

$100.00
$150.00
$10,000.00
$3,000.00
$3,000.00
$3,500.00
$12,000.00
$700.00
$30,000.00
$62,450.00
$13,950.00



Attachment 3

4:50 AM Carmel Heritage Society
03/01/22 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of March 1, 2022
Mar 1, 22
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
petty cash 345.61
Wells Fargo 2497 9,130.40
Wells Fargo Savings 8002 500.03
Total Checking/Savings 9,976.04
Other Current Assets
Inventory Asset
Inventory - Books 307.00
Inventory - Video 560.00
Total Inventory Asset 867.00
Investment
Community Foundation Enowment F 146,707.47
Total Investment 146,707.47
Total Other Current Assets 147,574.47
Total Current Assets 157,550.51
Fixed Assets
Exhibit (Opened 3/31/16) 21,817.34
Furniture & Fixtures
Storage Shed 11,192.54
Computers 2,322.15
First Murphy House F&F 16,113.00
software 1,906.60
Total Furniture & Fixtures 31,534.29
Less Accumulated Depreciation -43,264.60
Total Fixed Assets 10,087.03
TOTAL ASSETS 167,637.54
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Payroll Liabilities 6,534.69
Total Other Current Liabilities 6,534.69
Total Current Liabilities 6,534.69
Total Liabilities 6,534.69
Equity
Temp. Restricted Net Assets
Arts Council -WWII/Covid Exhibt 193.86
City Grant - Personalities 1,267.99
Scholarship 1,454.00
Total Temp. Restricted Net Assets 2,915.85
Unrestricted Net Assets 163,911.95
Net Income -5,724.95
Total Equity 161,102.85
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 167,637.54

Page 1



Attachment 3

5:33 AM Carmel Heritage Society
03/01/22 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis January through December 2021
Jan - Dec 21
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Employee Retention 3,828.00
Credit 633.66
paypal transfer 496.94
PROGRAM INCOME
Membership Dues 6,297.68
Total PROGRAM INCOME 6,297.68
EVENT REVENUE
House Tour 25,527.38
EVENT REVENUE - Other 28.88
Total EVENT REVENUE 25,556.26
UNRESTRICTED CONTRIBUTIONS
Year End Gift 5,140.00
Donation 18,503.50
Total UNRESTRICTED CONTRIBUTIONS 23,643.50
TEMP RESTRICTED DONATIONS
Arts Council Grant -40.00
TEMP RESTRICTED DONATIONS - Other 1,000.00
Total TEMP RESTRICTED DONATIONS 960.00
SALES REVENUE
Book Sales 526.56
DVD 447.94
SALES REVENUE - Other 75.00
Total SALES REVENUE 1,049.50
Other Types of Income
Miscellaneous Revenue 523.27
Other Types of Income - Other 272.42
Total Other Types of Income 795.69
Total Income 63,261.23
Gross Profit 63,261.23
Expense
Accounting Fees 3,826.28
Bank Card Fees 1,273.74
Books, Subscriptions, Reference 117.00
Business Expenses 128.11
Business Registration Fees 17.00
Contract Services 9,341.50
Dues & Subscriptions 770.00
Equip Rental and Maintenance 1,330.76
House Tour
Fees 326.25
Printing 1,162.42
Publicity 650.00
Supplies for tours 683.00
House Tour - Other 11,845.12
Total House Tour 14,666.79
Insurance - Liability, D and O 3,467.00
Office & Administration 620.52
Other Costs 400.00
Other Types of Expenses 74.31
Outside Contract Services 960.00

Page 1



5:33 AM

03/01/22
Cash Basis

Carmel Heritage Society

Profit & Loss
January through December 2021

Attachment 3

Payroll Expenses
Payroll Taxes
Payroll Expenses - Other

Total Payroll Expenses

Postage, Mailing Service
Printing

Reconciliation Discrepancies
Rent, Parking, Utilities

Supplies

Telephone, Telecommunications
Website Costs

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Jan - Dec 21

5,678.98
23,878.25

29,557.23

882.25
210.26
-8.68
1,125.21
678.44
2,684.09
822.99

72,944.80

-9,683.57

-9,683.57

Page 2



4:51 AM Carmel Heritage Society

03/01/22 Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2021

Cash Basis

Attachment 3

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
petty cash
Wells Fargo 2497
Wells Fargo Savings 8002

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
Inventory Asset
Inventory - Books
Inventory - Video

Total Inventory Asset

Investment
Community Foundation Enowment F

Total Investment
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Exhibit (Opened 3/31/16)
Furniture & Fixtures
Storage Shed
Computers
First Murphy House F&F
software

Total Furniture & Fixtures
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities
Payroll Liabilities

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Temp. Restricted Net Assets
Arts Council -WWIl/Covid Exhibt

City Grant - Personalities
Scholarship

Total Temp. Restricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Dec 31, 21

345.61
14,282.53
500.03

15,128.17

307.00
560.00

867.00

146,707.47

146,707.47

147,574.47

162,702.64

21,817.34

11,192.54
2,322.15
16,113.00
1,906.60

31,534.29
-43,264.60

10,087.03

172,789.67

5,961.87

5,961.87

5,961.87

5,961.87

193.86
1,267.99
1,454.00

2,915.85

173,595.52
-9,683.57

166,827.80

172,789.67

Page 1



Attachment 4

ﬁ __ City Council
- Discretionary Grant
*' Program

Organization Information

Name of Applicant Organization:Carmel Padre Parents Club

Name and Position/Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Sarah Myers, Sober Grad Night Parent
Volunteer

Organization Mailing Address:P.O. Box 222780
Telephone Number:(831) 238-7559
Email:sarahwmyers@gmail.com

Geographic Area(s) the Organization serves:Carmel Unified School District: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Carmel, Carmel
Valley, Carmel Highlands, Big Sur, Pebble Beach

Age groups served by the Organization:13-17, 18-24
Number of Carmel-by-the-Sea (93921) residents the Organization serves:| don't have exact number this year. Last
year had 25 in 93921. There are 189 seniors this year.

Is this Organization incorporated as a Nonprofit Organization?:Yes

Is this Organization a Carmel school?:Yes

Project/Program Details

Project/Program Name:Sober Grad Night 2022
Amount requested (up to $3,000):$3,000

Please provide a description of the Project, Program, or Service that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant
funding will be used to support.Sober Grad Night, organized by Carmel Padre Parents Club, is an event held on
the eve of Carmel High School's graduation. This year's event will be held on Friday June 3. Through generous
donations from the community and parents, we provide a safe and sober celebration that keeps our Seniors and
others who share the roads with them safe on one of the most important days of their lives. Furthermore, with the
onset of Covid and the isolation and anxiety it has caused, mental health has become a grave issue for many youth.
This event will provide a wonderful opportunity for the community to encourage and celebrate these young people
who will be leading us in the near future. All graduating Seniors are invited to attend at no cost to the students
allowing for 100% participation. Our team of dedicated and creative parent volunteers is working hard to plan and
promote a super fun event so that all graduates will want to come.
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Please provide the project, program, or service objectives that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding
will be used to support.The objective of Sober Grad Night is to ensure safe passage of all high school graduates
as they transition into adulthood. High School graduation is a moment of great promise and excitement - as well as
considerable risk. Statistically, graduation night is the most dangerous night of many young Americans’ lives - and
endangers the lives of anyone who shares the roads with them. To reach this objective, we must make it attractive
to a diverse group so that all the students will want to come!

Please describe the specific benefit to the Carme-by-the-Sea community that your project, program, or
service will provide, including the target population and number of community members that will be served.
Most importantly, this event reduces the risk of a teenage automobile accident affecting our small community. It
keeps the graduates safe and having fun while keeping the town safe and undisturbed. Additionally, Sober Grad
Night provides ongoing goodwill within our community of people who have children, grandchildren, nieces and
nephews at our schools, who own and rent homes, who own and work at businesses, and who shop and dine in our
town. Many of these students work and shop in town themselves.

Furthermore with mental health a growing concern, this event gives students who may otherwise drift into further
isolation and depression on this climactic evening, the opportunity to have memorable camaraderie with their fellow
graduates while safely chaperoned by caring parents. We need to do all we can to work against any potential
tragedy. The class of 2022 has 189 students including 4 who attend Carmel Valley High School.

Please describe how your organization would use the funding awarded, including equipment or services

that would be purchased and why.If granted funding by our City, the money will be used to offset the estimated
cost of $250/per student.

Attachments

Please provide the following attachments via email to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Make sure to include the name of
the Organization in the subject line of the email and on all attachments.

- A copy of the Organization's proof of non-profit status, with a copy of the letter from the IRS.
- A detailed, line item budget plan for the project, program, or service's use of the grant funds.

- A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on your organization's annual sources of revenue
received.

- The Organization's past two year's financial statements - including the current year - with balance sheets, sources

of revenue, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of revenue that is used for administration, salaries
and program costs.

Certification and Signature
The Applicant Organization acknowledges and agrees to the following:

- That it is subject to all City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program requirements, including submittal deadlines
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and payment disbursements. Attachment 4

- That it will not spend City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funds on ineligible activities/services as
outlined in City Council Policy C16- : City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program.

- The awarding of City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding does not constitute an automatic annual
allocation.

- City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding, if allocated, will be for the sole use as reflected in this
application form.

- As a condition of receiving funds, an agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea in a form and with content
provided by the City, will be signed and executed by a duly authorized representative of the applicant organization.

- All funds awarded must be spent by the end of the fiscal year (June 30).

- The recipient shall provide a full accounting with documentation on the use of awarded funds within 30 days after
the end of the Project/Program/Service or by June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded.

- The recipient shall return to the City any funds not spent or documented per the signed agreement.
- The City reserves the right to conduct an audit and/or require additional backup information to substantiate how
funds received from the City were expended. Failure to provide proper documentation may jeopardize future

funding.

| certify on behalf of the above named nonprofit applicant organization that | have read, understand and agree that
the aforesaid information is accurate, factual, and current.

Name and Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Sarah Myers, Padre Parents Sober Grad Night
Volunteer

Organization name:Carmel Padre Parents Club

Date:03/29/2022
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SOBER GRAD NIGHT 2022

BUDGET
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

2022 TO-DATE 2021 2018
FUNDRAISING FUNDS:
Grants 21,000 18,200 35,000
Donations 10,000 9,096
Rummage Sale 10,000 17,000

Subtotal ~ income 41,000 27,296 52,000 0

EXPENSES:
Boardwalk (per person cost) 29,975 6,145 26,625 30,000
Gradnight lounge (@ boardwalk) 2,500
Decorations 1,500 3,000
Blankets
Blanket embroidery
T-shirts for seniors 2,000 2,940
Food & Beverages 360
DJ 1,525 1,000 1,000
Hypnotist (fee + hotel) 1,050 750 1,750 1,750
Photographer 3,000
Audio Visual 7,000 7,000
Uhaul 500 500
Pop up tent 10x10 (6)
Transportation (for tents/décor)
General Labor 500 500
Party book expenses 500




Advertising/Signage on campus 319
Fundraising: 1,000 1,000
Minute Parties 1,000 55 1,000 0
Transportation (charter buses) 8,250 7,500 7,500
CHS THEATER:
Use fee (arrival & departure) 500 500
Breathalizer Rental
To-go breakfast
CHS gym (arrival & departure) 2,500
Miscellaneous 1,000
POST ACTIVITIES:
Acknowledgment (Pine Cone) 1,000
Wrap-up party
Subtotal ~ expenses 47,800 10,209 48,875 59,610
Net (6,800) 17,087 3,125 (59,610)




2022 Sober Grad Grant Requests & Rummage Sale

ORGANIZATION 2022 GRANT Goal
Carmel Highlands Fire Protection District $500 $500
Pebble Beach Community Services District $1,000 $1,000
Carmel Gives $1,000 $1,000
Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council Discretionary Fund $3,000
Carmel Residents Association $510.65 $250
Carmel Valley Kiwanis $250 $250
CHOMP/Montage Health S750 $750
Carmel Unified School District $35,000
Doug Steiny Real Estate $500 $500
Drive Carmel $200 $200
Marcia DeVoe Foundation $5,000 $5,000
Monterey Peninsula Foundation $2,000 $2,000
Nielsen Brothers Market $200 $250
Padre Parents $2,000 $2,000
Rotary Club of Carmel-by-the-Sea $3,000 $3,000
Rotary Club of Carmel Valley $500
Yellow Brick Road $1,000 $1,000
Sober Grad Night Rummage Sale ~ April 2! $8,000
Total Grant $ $17,911 $64,200




Carmel Padre Parents Club Attachment 4
Profit and Loss
July 2020 - June 2021
TOTAL
Income
Cash On Hand 23.00
Donations 6,753.08
Fundraising 1,596.52
Interest 2.16
Membership 17,820.00
Rebate Programs 35.47
AmazonSmile 184.73
EScrip 59.38
Total Rebate Programs 279.58
Sales 6,000.00
Sober Grad Income 2,100.00
Donations 2,285.00
From Donors 25,442.33
From Padre Parents 600.00
Total Donations 28,327.33
Fundraising 16,012.78
Total Sober Grad Income 46,440.11
Total Income $78,914.45
GROSS PROFIT $78,914.45
Expenses
Awards & Recognition
Academic Recognition 4,326.47
Faculty Awards 1,016.05
Staff Appreciation Luncheon 2,100.63
Staff Appreciation(Monthly) 1,013.01
Total Awards & Recognition 8,456.16
Bank fees 312.40
Hospitality 1,350.00
Operating Expenses
Accounting 873.90
Fees 35.00
Insurance 562.83
Miscellaneous 269.89
Postage 709.50
Supplies 1,636.65
Total Operating Expenses 4,087.77
School Events
Enrichment 253.09
Total School Events 253.09

Cash Basis Monday, March 28, 2022 04:50 PM GMT-07:00
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Carmel Padre Parents Club

Profit and Loss
July 2020 - June 2021

Attachment 4

TOTAL
Sober Grad Expenses 744.67
Construction/Decorating 2,581.82
Credit Card Fees 32.74
DJ 1,050.00
Entertainment 1,525.00
Event Food 3,600.00
Facilities 24,975.00
Minute Parties 1,060.86
Misc 1,992.57
Senior Gifts 6,444.50
Transportation 6,755.45
Vendors 25.00
Total Sober Grad Expenses 50,787.61
Student/Teacher Support 500.00
Ways & Means(Grants)
Grants - Current Year 7,490.67
Total Ways & Means(Grants) 7,490.67
Total Expenses $73,237.70
NET OPERATING INCOME $5,676.75
NET INCOME $5,676.75

Cash Basis Monday, March 28, 2022 04:50 PM GMT-07:00

22



Carmel Padre Parents Club

Attachment 4
Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2021
TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
Wells Fargo PP Checking 9216 27,733.48
Wells Fargo Raffle 3319 4,560.77
Wells Fargo Sober Grad 7121 13,968.44
Total Bank Accounts $46,262.69
Other Current Assets
Cashbox 0.00
Total Other Current Assets $0.00
Total Current Assets $46,262.69
TOTAL ASSETS $46,262.69
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Opening Bal Equity 40,315.76
Retained Earnings 270.18
Net Income 5,676.75
Total Equity $46,262.69
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $46,262.69

Cash Basis Monday, March 28, 2022 04:54 PM GMT-07:00

7



Carmel Padre Parents Club

Profit and Loss
July 2019 - June 2020

TOTAL
Income Attachment4
Interest 3.23
Membership 21,267.00
Misc Income 1.00
Rebate Programs
AmazonSmile 61.65
EScrip 129.52
Total Rebate Programs 191.17
Sober Grad Income 4,350.00
Donations 15,725.00
Raffle 475.00
Total Sober Grad Income 20,550.00
Super Bowl Raffle Ticket Sales 36,777.00
Total Income $78,789.40
GROSS PROFIT $78,789.40
Expenses
Awards & Recognition 165.00
Academic Recognition 963.71
Faculty Awards 1,000.00
Staff Appreciation Luncheon 1,800.00
Total Awards & Recognition 3,928.71
Bank fees 336.11
Super Bowl! Bank Fees 211.89
Total Bank fees 548.00
Operating Expenses 620.19
Accounting 357.80
Fees 55.00
Insurance 560.00
Miscellaneous 490.83
Total Operating Expenses 2,083.82
Sober Grad Expenses 14,385.25
Credit Card Fees 36.65
Lighting 8,561.50
Photography 4,193.09
Publicity/Thank You's 1,015.00
Total Sober Grad Expenses 28,191.49
Super Bowl Raffle Bank Fees 60.70
Super Bowl Raffle Cash Prize 250.00
Super Bowl Raffle Expenses 2,447.21
Ways & Means(Grants) 2,000.00
Grants - Current Year 6,935.65
Grants - Raffle Proceeds 26,964.50
Total Ways & Means(Grants) 35,900.15
Total Expenses $73,410.08
NET OPERATING INCOME $5,379.32
NET INCOME $5,379.32

Cash Basis Monday, March 28, 2022 04:51 PM GMT-07:00 11



Carmel Padre Parents Club

Attachment 4
Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2020
TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
Wells Fargo PP Checking 9216 30,112.77
Wells Fargo Raffle 3319 4,588.77
Wells Fargo Sober Grad (deleted) 12,069.79
Wells Fargo Sober Grad 7121 5,996.40
Total Bank Accounts $52,767.73
Other Current Assets
Cashbox 0.00
Total Other Current Assets $0.00
Total Current Assets $52,767.73
TOTAL ASSETS $52,767.73
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Opening Bal Equity 52,385.55
Retained Earnings -4,997.14
Net Income 5,379.32
Total Equity $52,767.73
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $52,767.73

Cash Basis Monday, March 28, 2022 04:56 PM GMT-07:00

7



Attachment 5

ﬁ __ City Council
- Discretionary Grant
*' Program

Organization Information

Name of Applicant Organization:Carmel Residents Association (CRA) — 501(c)(4) Non-Profit Organization
Name and Position/Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Tim Twomey, Treasurer

Organization Mailing Address:P.O. Box 13, Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921

Telephone Number:916-335-3399

Email:info@carmelresidents.org

Geographic Area(s) the Organization serves:Carmel-by-the-Sea and sphere of influence

Age groups served by the Organization:13-17, 18-24, 25-34, 35-44, 45-54, 55-64, 65 and over

Number of Carmel-by-the-Sea (93921) residents the Organization serves:800 members and all Carmel-by-the-Sea
plus sphere of influence residents and home owners.

Is this Organization incorporated as a Nonprofit Organization?:Yes

Is this Organization a Carmel school?:No

Project/Program Details

Project/Program Name:Civic and Informational Community Programs
Amount requested (up to $3,000):$3,000

Please provide a description of the Project, Program, or Service that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant
funding will be used to support.For over thirty years the Carmel Residents Association has been one of the most
generous nonprofit organizations in Carmel. When we say 'generous,' we mean that we have supported the
citizenry in areas of education through lectures, entertainment, vital information regarding voting, public access, and
the celebration of people who have been in the forefront of making this Village a better place to live, work, and
nurture in this iconic hamlet.

We produce speakers on vital subjects that impact our hometown. We have hosted the Candidates Forum for many
years (an educational/informational program). We have honored the Citizen of the Year through the years. The
CRA has funded Music in the Schools, Graduation Night gifts, and scholarships. Every year we choose a local
business for special recognition--Business of the Year.
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And we do this at no cost to the City of Carmel by-the-Sea, with only Membership fees covering them. Attachment 5

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding will to be used to support our rental expenses for public programs held
at the Sunset Center’s Carpenter Hall. We request being awarded this grant to assist us in our vital work for the
citizens of this Village.

Please provide the project, program, or service objectives that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding
will be used to support.The CRA hosts civic and informational local relevant programs 5-6 per year in Carpenter
Hall of the Sunset Center. These open to the public programs, whether a solo speaker or panel, embrace local
artists, historians, authors, performers, and city leaders. Residents of Carmel-by-the-Sea and our expanded sphere
of influence are welcome to these live and in person programs.

Of course, during pandemic times, we initially postponed and then shifted to Zoom for delivery — however our
default is in-person at Carpenter Hall (and corresponding costs) — encouraging mixing/mingling with fellow residents
and presenters on either side of the program content.

Please describe the specific benefit to the Carme-by-the-Sea community that your project, program, or
service will provide, including the target population and number of community members that will be served.
Our programs work to educate and engage locals on the richness and value of what our people, architecture, and
natural resources bring to our Village and area from past, present, and future. Our target population are residents of
Carmel-by-the-Sea and our sphere of influence. A list of past and some upcoming programs can be found at
https://www.carmelresidents.org/our-programs.

Please describe how your organization would use the funding awarded, including equipment or services
that would be purchased and why.The funding awarded will be used to cover Carpenter Hall rental fees, including
setup & logistics for 5 to 6 programs per year (Sept-June) at an estimated cost of $600 per program.

Our September program will be the resident’s focused Candidates Forum (panel of those on the November ballot for
City Mayor & Council Member). This is purely educational and informative. We do not endorse candidates. Our
planned October program will be the rescheduling of John Sanders “Historic Hotel Del Monte & 17 Mile Drive”.
January, March, and May 2023 programs are yet to be finalized. This funding will be used to enrich all of these
programs.

Attachments

Please provide the following attachments via email to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Make sure to include the name of
the Organization in the subject line of the email and on all attachments.

- A copy of the Organization's proof of non-profit status, with a copy of the letter from the IRS.
- A detailed, line item budget plan for the project, program, or service's use of the grant funds.

- A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on your organization's annual sources of revenue
received.

- The Organization's past two year's financial statements - including the current year - with balance sheets, sources
of revenue, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of revenue that is used for administration, salaries
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and program costs. Attachment 5

Certification and Signature

The Applicant Organization acknowledges and agrees to the following:

- That it is subject to all City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program requirements, including submittal deadlines
and payment disbursements.

- That it will not spend City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funds on ineligible activities/services as
outlined in City Council Policy C16- : City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program.

- The awarding of City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding does not constitute an automatic annual
allocation.

- City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding, if allocated, will be for the sole use as reflected in this
application form.

- As a condition of receiving funds, an agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea in a form and with content
provided by the City, will be signed and executed by a duly authorized representative of the applicant organization.

- All funds awarded must be spent by the end of the fiscal year (June 30).

- The recipient shall provide a full accounting with documentation on the use of awarded funds within 30 days after
the end of the Project/Program/Service or by June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded.

- The recipient shall return to the City any funds not spent or documented per the signed agreement.
- The City reserves the right to conduct an audit and/or require additional backup information to substantiate how
funds received from the City were expended. Failure to provide proper documentation may jeopardize future

funding.

| certify on behalf of the above named nonprofit applicant organization that | have read, understand and agree that
the aforesaid information is accurate, factual, and current.

Name and Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Tim Twomey, Treasurer
Organization name:Carmel Residents Association

Date:03/18/2022
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. . Attachment 5
Carmel Residents Association

Budget Plan
For Use of
Carmel-by-the-Sea City Grant Fund

Carmel-by-the-Sea
Fiscal Year
2022-2023
(7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023)
INCOME
City Grant Fund 3,000
TOTAL INCOME 3,000
EXPENSES
Carpenter Hall Rent for September 2022 Program 600
Carpenter Hall Rent for October 2022 Program 600
Carpenter Hall Rent for January 2023 Program 600
Carpenter Hall Rent for March 2023 Program 600
Carpenter Hall Rent for May 2023 Program 600
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,000

Confidential
To be used only for the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council
Discretionary Funds Grant Program Application process. 3/19/2022



. L Attachment 5
Carmel Residents Association

Balance Sheet
(Accounting period 4/1 through 3/31)

03/31/2020 03/31/2021 02/28/2022
Available Available Available
Balances Balances Balances
ASSETS ‘
Cash, Savings, and Investments $25,614 $23,244‘ $17,647
Restricted Gifted Funds $32,306 $68,406‘ $86,413
Land and Buildings 0\ 0\ 0
TOTAL ASSETS $57,920 $91,650 $104,060
LIABILITIES SO SO SO
EQUITY $57,920 $91,650‘ $104,060
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $57,920 $91,650 $104,060
Confidential

To be used only for the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council
Discretionary Funds Grant Program Application process. 3/19/2022



Carmel Residents Association

Attachment 5
Income and Expense Statement
(Accounting Period 4/1 to 3/31)
FY 2019 - FY 2020- FY 2021 -
2020 2021 2022
(2/28/22)

INCOME
Sales of Inventory 1,040 715 754
Contributions and Programs 52,501 41,581 36,403
Membership Dues 21,386 22,741 21,800
TOTAL INCOME 74,927 65,037 58,957
EXPENSES
Community Programs 20,151 10,069 21,990
Printing, Publications, Postage & Shipping 10,654 9,503 14,201
Insurance 891 4,302 2,600
Software & Website 2,949 3,898 3,442
Advertising 1,206 1,875 1,630
Supplies & Non-Capital Equipment 447 1,083 174
Payment Processing & Legal Fees 74 605 986
Rent/Storage 0 0 1,527
TOTAL EXPENSES 36,372 31,334 46,548
EXCESS OR (DEFICIT) 38,555 33,703 12,408
NOTE
Percentage of revenue used for:

Administration costs 0% 0% 0%

Salary costs 0% 0% 0%

Program costs 29% 18% 40%

Confidential
To be used only for the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council
Discretionary Funds Grant Program Application process. 3/19/2022
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Carmel Residents Association

FY 2021-2022 Budget

(Accounting Period 4/1 to 3/31)

FY 2021 - 2022

Budget

INCOME

Sales of Inventory 752
Contributions and Programs 19,520
Membership Dues 25,878
TOTAL INCOME 46,150
EXPENSES

Community Programs 25,232
Printing, Publications, Postage & Shipping 10,217
Insurance 2,800
Software & Website 3,426
Advertising 800
Supplies & Non-Capital Equipment 1,326
Payment Processing & Legal Fees 800
Rent/Storage 1,550
TOTAL EXPENSES 46,150

To be used only for the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council
Discretionary Funds Grant Program Application process.

Attachment 5

3/19/2022



Attachment 6

ﬁ __ City Council
- Discretionary Grant
*' Program

Organization Information

Name of Applicant Organization:Carmel Youth Center

Name and Position/Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Leanne Leonard, Grant Writer
Organization Mailing Address:PO Box 2399, Carmel, CA 93921-2399

Telephone Number:831.624.3285

Email:grants@carmelyouth.org

Geographic Area(s) the Organization serves:Monterey County

Age groups served by the Organization:0-12, 13-17
Number of Carmel-by-the-Sea (93921) residents the Organization serves:33 households

Is this Organization incorporated as a Nonprofit Organization?:Yes

Is this Organization a Carmel school?:No

Project/Program Details

Project/Program Name:New cubbies available for all Carmel Youth Center kids served in our newly renovated
lobby.

Amount requested (up to $3,000):$3,000

Please provide a description of the Project, Program, or Service that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant
funding will be used to support.The Carmel Youth Center would like to purchase new cubbies for our newly
renovated lobby. We will have a cubby for each child served by our Center, so they may store all of their personal
belongings such as backpacks, homework, jackets, snacks, etc. These will meet the growing needs of our Center as
we accept new children during the new school year and camps.

Please provide the project, program, or service objectives that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding
will be used to support.Our project objective is to purchase enough cubbies so each child served by our Center
has one for their belongings. We currently do not have enough cubbies for every child served by our after-school
program or camps. Newly purchased cubbies will be available once our renovation is complete this Summer in time
for the new school year in August.
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Please describe the specific benefit to the Carme-by-the-Sea community that your project, progl‘%“?,cbment 6
service will provide, including the target population and number of community members that will be served.
There will be 33 Carmel-by-the-Sea households that will directly benefit from newly purchased cubbies, but all
children served by our Center will benefit as well. Each child at Carmel Youth Center will be given a new cubby for
their belongings. We currently have an average of 60 kids who participate in our after-school program.

Please describe how your organization would use the funding awarded, including equipment or services
that would be purchased and why.The Carmel Youth Center (CYC) will be revitalizing our lobby area to better suit
the needs of the children served by our organization. Our future lobby will host a new reception desk, co-ed
restroom, displays for artwork, and new cubby holes or containers for the children to store their personal belongings
such as backpacks, homework, jackets, snacks, etc. We would like to respectfully request $3,000 to purchase new
cubby holes that will be large enough to store all of the children’s belongings and have enough cubbies for each
child served by our Center. Funding received by the City of Carmel will allow our Center to purchase approximately
three cubby containers (30 individual cubby holes) for children served. These new cubbies would be an excellent
addition to our future newly renovated lobby.

Attachments

Please provide the following attachments via email to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Make sure to include the name of
the Organization in the subject line of the email and on all attachments.

- A copy of the Organization's proof of non-profit status, with a copy of the letter from the IRS.
- A detailed, line item budget plan for the project, program, or service's use of the grant funds.

- A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on your organization's annual sources of revenue
received.

- The Organization's past two year's financial statements - including the current year - with balance sheets, sources

of revenue, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of revenue that is used for administration, salaries
and program costs.

Certification and Signature

The Applicant Organization acknowledges and agrees to the following:

- That it is subject to all City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program requirements, including submittal deadlines
and payment disbursements.

- That it will not spend City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funds on ineligible activities/services as
outlined in City Council Policy C16- : City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program.

- The awarding of City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding does not constitute an automatic annual
allocation.

- City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding, if allocated, will be for the sole use as reflected in this
application form.
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- As a condition of receiving funds, an agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea in a form and with Eaepent 6
provided by the City, will be signed and executed by a duly authorized representative of the applicant organization.

- All funds awarded must be spent by the end of the fiscal year (June 30).

- The recipient shall provide a full accounting with documentation on the use of awarded funds within 30 days after
the end of the Project/Program/Service or by June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded.

- The recipient shall return to the City any funds not spent or documented per the signed agreement.
- The City reserves the right to conduct an audit and/or require additional backup information to substantiate how
funds received from the City were expended. Failure to provide proper documentation may jeopardize future

funding.

| certify on behalf of the above named nonprofit applicant organization that | have read, understand and agree that
the aforesaid information is accurate, factual, and current.

Name and Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Leanne Leonard, Grant Writer
Organization name:Carmel Youth Center

Date:04/01/2022



g’ [ RS Department of the Treasury
AR Internal Revenue Service

032464

In reply refer to: 0248221235
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CARMEL YOUTH CENTER INC
PO BOX 2399
CARMEL CA 93921

Emplover ID Number: 94-1415306
Form 990 required: Yes
Attachment 6

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour request dated June 03, 1969, regarding
vour tax-exempt status.

We issued vou a determination letter in June 1960, recognizing
vou as tax-exempt under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)
(3).

Our records also indicate vou're not a private foundation as defined
under IRC Section 509(a) because you're described in IRC Section
KE09(a)(2).

Donors can deduct contributions they make to vou as provided in IRC
Section 170. You're also qualified to receive tax deductible bequests,
legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts under IRCZ Sections 2055, 2106,
and 2522.

In thhe heading of this letter, we indicated whether vou must file an
annual information return. If a return is required, wvou must file Form
990, 990-EZ, 990-N, or 990-PF by the 15th day of the fifth month after
the end of vour annual accounting period. IRC Szction 6033(j) provides
that, if vou don't file a required annual infornation return or notice
for three consecutive vears, vour exempt status will be automatically
revohed on the filing due date of the third regiired return cr notice.
For tax forms, instructions, and publications, visit www.irs.gov or
call 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If vou have questions, call 1-877-829-5500 between 8 a.m. and b p.m.,
local time, Monday through Friday (Alaska and Hawaii follow Pacific
Time) .
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Sincerely vours,

Attachment 6

A P gt

Doris Kenwright, Operation Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations 1



CARMEL YOUTH CENTER LOBBY PROJECT

Organization Name:
Program Name:

Carmel Youth Center

Carmel Youth Center Lobby Renovation

Attachment 6

Amount Committed Other
INCOME: needed Grants Funds Proposals TOTAL
Carmel Gives $15,000 $15,000
Anonymous Donor Advised Fund $5,000 $5,000
Rotary Club of Carmel by the Sea $25,000 $25,000
TOTAL $25,000 $15,000 $5,000 $45,000
EXPENSES (a pre-bid estimate of division of
funds) Rotary funds may also be used for
reception or security components pending
actual expenses. Actual expenses to follow Committed Other
after accepted bids: Grants Funds Proposals TOTAL
Reception Area $15,000 $15,000
Updated Security $5,000 $5,000
ADA Bathroom $25,000 $25,000
Cubbies (6 cubby containers = 60) $5,300
TOTAL $5,300 $25,000 $15,000 $5,000 $45,000

0000001




Actuals
(Leave this column
blank until grant
report)

$0

Actuals
(Leave this column
blank until grant
report)

$0
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0000002

Attachment 6
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Attachment 6

FY22 Approved Budget
—————

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
5000 - Earned Income
5009 - Jujutsu 800.00 Jijuitsu going - staff are volunteers
5011 - Processing Fee Charged 3,000.00 Processing fees that donors and or parents can pay for us.
5005 - Rental Fees 6,600.00 We hope to have more eventsin 2022
5004 - School Year/Memberships 60,000.00 We were not open thefirst half of the year. | am hoping next year to get back to 2019 numbers.
5001 - Snack Bar Sales/Hot Lunch 1,000.00 Not sureit this will open. Budgeting break even in case it does open.
5008 - Camps 85,000.00 Sameas prior year.
Total 5000 - Earned Income 156,400.00
5100 - Grants
5130 - Restricted 40,000.00 With a dedicated grant writer -should be able to get more grants.
5105 - Unrestricted 45,000.00 With a dedicated grant writer -should be able to get more grants.
5100 - Grants - Other 0.00 these should either berecorded unrestricted (5105) or restricted (account 5130)
Total 5100 - Grants 85,000.00
5200 - Donations
5215 - Board Member Donations 13,000.00 Assume $1k per member
5201 - Unsolicited Funds 40,000.00 Difficult to budget / predict - thisis a good goal.
Total 5200 - Donations 53,000.00
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue
5301 - AT&T Event Revenue 12,000.00 We expect approxiamtely $12k from AT&T.
5304 - Concours D' Elegance 34,000.00 Same as prior year.
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue - Other 25,000.00 These are smaller fundraisers.
Total 5300 - Fundraiser Revenue 71,000.00
Total Income 365,400.00
Cost of Goods Sold
50002 - Snack Bar 1,000.00 Assume break even for snack bar.
Total COGS 1,000.00
Gross Profit 364,400.00
Expense

7200 - Fund Raiser Expense
7201 - AT&T Event Expense
Total 7200 - Fund Raiser Expense
6100 - Advertising
6120 - Automobile Expense
6150 - Bank Charges
6180 - Board Expense
6200 - Dues & Subscriptions
6300 - Entertainment
6350 - Human Resources Costs
6400 - Insurance
6410 - Workmans' Comp
6400 - Insurance - Other
Total 6400 - Insurance
6500 - Interest Expense
6600 - Janitorial
6650 - Linen Service
6710 - Meals
7030 - Outside Contractors
7037 - Payroll Expenses
7038 - Gross Wages
7039 - Benefits
7050 - Payroll Taxes - Other
Total 7050 - Payroll Taxes
7040 - Payroll Services
Total 7037 - Payroll Expenses
7300 - Postage
7400 - Professional Services
7410 - Accounting
Total 7400 - Professional Services
7500 - Repair & Maintenance
7500 - Repair & Maintenance - Other
Total 7500 - Repair & Maintenance
7700 - Security
7750 - Supplies
7751 - Office
7750 - Supplies - Other
Total 7750 - Supplies
7800 - Taxes
7820 - Sales Taxes
Total 7800 - Taxes
7930 - Telephone
8100 - Transportation
7900 - Utilities
7907 - Trash
7901 - Water
7902 - Cable
7904 - Gas & Electric
7906 - Internet Service
Total 7900 - Utilities

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

150.00
150.00
5,000.00
250.00
2,500.00
1,300.00
10,000.00
200.00
1,800.00

5,500.00
10,200.00
15,700.00

50.00
13,000.00

2,000.00

1,000.00
12,250.00

175,000.00
3,000.00
15,000.00
15,000.00
5,000.00
198,000.00
100.00

13,000.00
13,000.00

15,000.00
15,000.00
1,800.00

5,500.00
20,000.00
25,500.00

300.00
300.00
1,800.00
2,200.00

3,000.00
3,000.00
500.00
7,000.00
3,000.00
16,500.00
339,400.00
25,000.00
25,000.00

Snacks or labels for volunteers.

fundraising software, mailchimp use, news ads

Gas costs for Concours.

Same as prior year - slight increase with more attendance.
retreat, dinner, etc.

Online subscriptions -amazon, mailchimp... website.
Netfilx, Disney+...

Staff shirts, lawyer, HR costs, $150/mo

We have a lot of staff over summer

Annual liability insurance

Expect increase with more events.

Rags, mops, toilet paper, paper towels (Mission Linen)
Staff meals for dinners, lunches.

grant writer

raise

403b, phonestipend

8.5% of salaries

same as prior year

same as prior year

Assume won't need all of $2k each month.
Thisis for building stuff not people, should not increase.

General supplies.
Programming supplies.

Sales taxes on facility rentals and snack bar .

Same as prior year.

Thisis car rental for Concours (Fundraiser expense) and or if Jesssica putsin for mileage to go to ikea, etc.

Expect increase with CYC more during year.
Expect increase with CYC more during year.
Sameas prior year.
Expect increase with CYC more during year.
Sameas prior year.

10f2



capital assets - equipment / building improvements (cash outlay) 25,000
Budget Balance -
Iltems not in budget:

depreciation expense

investment income/loss

notin QB - would be a balance sheet addition

should be zero

Attachment 6

20f2
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Accrual Basis

Carmel Youth Center
Transaction Detail By Account
January 2018 through February 2022

TOTAL

Type Date Num Adj Name Memo Class Clr Split Debit Credit Balance
5100 - Grants
5130 - Restricted
5110 - MC Gives
Deposit 03/13/2018 15312 -MULTIPLE- -MULTIPLE- Fundraisi... 1001 - Checki... 8,105.88 8,105.88
Total 5110 - MC Gives 0.00 8,105.88 8,105.88
5130 - Restricted - Other
Deposit 11/16/2018 Tutor Doctor Administr... 1001 - Checki... 1,000.00 1,000.00
Deposit 02/25/2019 042104 City of Carmel Grant- tablets/acce...  Grants 1001 - Checki... 3,000.00 4,000.00
Deposit 06/11/2020 18895 -MULTIPLE- Grants 1001 - Checki... 11,000.00 15,000.00
Deposit 01/11/2021 19420 Community Foundation Grants 1001 - Checki... 7,000.00 22,000.00
Deposit 06/23/2021 2225 Pebble Beach Foundation.- suppli...  Grants 1001 - Checki... 5,775.00 27,775.00
Deposit 09/23/2021 20381 -MULTIPLE- Grants 1001 - Checki... 13,000.00 40,775.00
Deposit 11/01/2021 1081 -MULTIPLE- Grants 1001 - Checki... 6,362.00 47,137.00
Deposit 11/17/2021 1082 Carmel Chamber of Commerce (C...  Grants 1001 - Checki... 10,325.50 57,462.50
Total 5130 - Restricted - Other 0.00 57,462.50 57,462.50
Total 5130 - Restricted 0.00 65,568.38 65,568.38
5105 - Unrestricted
5108 - Goldman Sachs
Deposit 12/24/2018 00012... Donation from the Good Steward ... Administr... 1001 - Checki... 4,000.00 4,000.00
Total 5108 - Goldman Sachs 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
5105 - Unrestricted - Other
Deposit 08/27/2020 10003... Carmel Rotary Fund Grants 1001 - Checki... 10,000.00 10,000.00
Deposit 09/10/2021 Carmel Rotary Fund Grants 1001 - Checki... 35,000.00 45,000.00
Deposit 09/23/2021 1078 Carmel Chamber of Commerce (C...  Grants 1001 - Checki... 1,312.50 46,312.50
Total 5105 - Unrestricted - Other 0.00 46,312.50 46,312.50
Total 5105 - Unrestricted 0.00 50,312.50 50,312.50
5100 - Grants - Other
Deposit 04/28/2020 Network for Good (NFG) Grant Grants 1001 - Checki... 25.00 25.00
Deposit 09/18/2020 1062 Rotary Club of Carmel Grants 1001 - Checki... 2,500.00 2,525.00
Deposit 10/08/2020 7352 Arts Council for Monterey County Grants 1001 - Checki... 975.00 3,500.00
Deposit 11/19/2020 6662 11/10 Carmel Woman's Club Grants 1001 - Checki... 500.00 4,000.00
Deposit 03/12/2021 198702 U.S. Charitable Gift Trust Grants 1001 - Checki... 500.00 4,500.00
Total 5100 - Grants - Other 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
Total 5100 - Grants 0.00 120,380.88 120,380.88
0.00 120,380.88 120,380.88
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Attachment 6

2:12 PM Carmel Youth Center
03122122 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 28, 2022
Feb 28, 22
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - Checking Wells Fargo-8686 98,461.08
1002 - Checking WF-9356 (Petty Cash) 1,669.76
Total Checking/Savings 100,130.84
Other Current Assets
1300 - Snack Bar Inventory 1,006.66
Total Other Current Assets 1,006.66
Total Current Assets 101,137.50
Fixed Assets
1550 - Land and Building 343,582.00
1580 - Building improvements 419,962.26
1590 - Machinery and equipment 40,472.72
1588 - Landscape improvements 7,806.27
1599 - Accumulated Depreciation -575,515.00
1598 - Furniture and Fixtures 6,687.35
Total Fixed Assets 242,995.60
TOTAL ASSETS 344,133.10
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 818.81
Total Accounts Payable 818.81
Credit Cards
1015 - WF Visa cc-5977 -26.00
Total Credit Cards -26.00
Total Current Liabilities 792.81
Total Liabilities 792.81
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings -222,835.01
4000 - Net Assets
4350 - Fund Balance Acc. Depreciation -532,710.00
4100 - Unrestricted
4101 - Operating 1,044,929.62
Total 4100 - Unrestricted 1,044,929.62
4300 - Permanently restricted
4301 - Permanent endowments 75,000.00
Total 4300 - Permanently restricted 75,000.00
Total 4000 - Net Assets 587,219.62
Net Income -21,044.32
Total Equity 343,340.29
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 344,133.10
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2:12PM Carmel Youth Center

0322122 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through February 2022
AT&T Concours Fundraising-general After School/Drop Ins Camps Jujitsu Parents Night Out
Administrative (Fundraising) ( isi ( isi Total Fundraising (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) Total Programs TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
5000 - Earned Income
5009 - Jujutsu 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 0.00 160.00 160.00
5011 - Processing Fee Charged 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.28 296.28
5004 - School Year/Memberships 0.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 63.00 11,640.49 0.00 0.00 200.00 11,840.49 11,903.49
5001 - Snack Bar Sales/Hot Lunch 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5008 - Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,345.00 0.00 0.00 5,345.00 5,345.00
Total 5000 - Earned Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 63.00 11,936.77 5,345.00 160.00 200.00 17,641.77 17,704.77
5200 - Donations
5215 - Board Member Donations 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
5201 - Unsolicited Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,980.97 6,980.97 0.00 0.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 7.060.97
Total 5200 - Donations 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,230.97 7,230.97 0.00 0.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 7.310.97
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue
5301 - AT&T Event Revenue 0.00 994.00 0.00 0.00 994.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 994.00
5304 - Concours D' Elegance 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 5300 - Fundraiser Revenue 0.00 994.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,994.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,994.00
5900 - Interest Income 1.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.76
Total Income 1.76 994.00 1,000.00 7,293.97 9,287.97 11,936.77 5,345.00 240.00 200.00 17,721.77 27,0150
Cost of Goods Sold
50002 - Snack Bar 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.40 945.90 0.00 0.00 1,092.30 1,092.30
Total COGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.40 945.90 0.00 0.00 1,092.30 1,092.30
Gross Profit 1.76 994.00 1,000.00 7,293.97 9,287.97 11,790.37 4,399.10 240.00 200.00 16,629.47 25,919.20
Expense
7200 - Fund Raiser Expense
7201 - AT&T Event Expense 40.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00
Total 7200 - Fund Raiser Expense 40.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00
6100 - Advertising 537.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 537.79
6150 - Bank Charges 325.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 325.95
6200 - Dues & Subscriptions 1,001.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,001.09
6400 - Insurance
6410 - Workmans' Comp 1,046.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,046.00
6400 - Insurance - Other 339142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 339142
Total 6400 - Insurance 4,437.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,437.42
6650 - Linen Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 194.05 38.81 0.00 0.00 232.86 232.86
6710 - Meals 9.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.00
7037 - Payroll Expenses
7038 - Gross Wages 7,226.00 1,096.92 0.00 2,753.85 3,850.77 0.00 12,662.79 0.00 0.00 12,662.79 23,739.56
7050 - Payroll Taxes 638.49 90.60 0.00 276.46 367.06 0.00 1,282.46 0.00 0.00 1,282.46 2,288.01
7040 - Payroll Services 1,066.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,066.67
Total 7037 - Payroll Expenses 8931.16 1,187.52 0.00 3,030.31 4,217.83 0.00 13,945.25 0.00 0.00 13,945.25 27,094.24
7400 - Professional Services
7410 - Accounting 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00
Total 7400 - Professional Services 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00
7500 - Repair & Maintenance 2,135.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3335.00
7700 - Security 446.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 446.25
7750 - Supplies
7751 - Office 316.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31631
7750 - Supplies - Other 33.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 805.71 2,050.71 0.00 0.00 2,856.42 2,889.67
Total 7750 - Supplies 349.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 805.71 2,050.71 0.00 0.00 2,856.42 3,205.98
7930 - Telephone 350.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350.21
8100 - Transportation 0.00 1,786.76 0.00 0.00 1,786.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,786.76
6700 - Travel 97.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 97.20
7900 - Utilities
7907 - Trash 1,388.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,388.61
7901 - Water 194.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 194.52
7902 - Cable 85.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85.60
7904 - Gas & Electric 923.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 923.66
7906 - Internet Service 362.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 362.38
Total 7900 - Utilities 2,954.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2954.77
Total Expense 22,724.40 2974.28 0.00 4,23031 7,204.59 999.76 16,034.77 0.00 0.00 17,034.53 46,963.52
Net Ordinary Income -22,722.64 -1,980.28 1,000.00 3,063.66 2,083.38 10,790.61 -11,635.67 240.00 200.00 -405.06 -21,044.32
Net Income 22,722.64 -1,980.28 1,000.00 3,063.66 2,083.38 10,790.61 -11,635.67 240.00 200.00 -405.06 -21,044.32
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Attachment 6

2:12 PM Carmel Youth Center
03122122 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2021
Dec 31, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - Checking Wells Fargo-8686 123,638.60
1002 - Checking WF-9356 (Petty Cash) 2,232.70
Total Checking/Savings 125,871.30
Other Current Assets
1300 - Snack Bar Inventory 1,006.66
Total Other Current Assets 1,006.66
Total Current Assets 126,877.96
Fixed Assets
1550 - Land and Building 343,582.00
1580 - Building improvements 419,962.26
1590 - Machinery and equipment 40,472.72
1588 - Landscape improvements 7,806.27
1599 - Accumulated Depreciation -575,515.00
1598 - Furniture and Fixtures 6,687.35
Total Fixed Assets 242,995.60
TOTAL ASSETS 369,873.56
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 5,5614.95
Total Accounts Payable 5,5614.95
Credit Cards
1015 - WF Visa cc-5977 -26.00
Total Credit Cards -26.00
Total Current Liabilities 5,488.95
Total Liabilities 5,488.95
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings -332,587.01
4000 - Net Assets
4350 - Fund Balance Acc. Depreciation -532,710.00
4100 - Unrestricted
4101 - Operating 1,044,929.62
Total 4100 - Unrestricted 1,044,929.62
4300 - Permanently restricted
4301 - Permanent endowments 75,000.00
Total 4300 - Permanently restricted 75,000.00
Total 4000 - Net Assets 587,219.62
Net Income 109,752.00
Total Equity 364,384.61
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 369,873.56

Page 1



2:10PM

03/22/22

Accrual

Basis

Carmel Youth Center
Profit & Loss

January through December 2021

Ordinary Income/Expense

Gre

5000 - Earned Income
5009 - Jujutsu
5011 - Processing Fee Charged
5005 - Rental Fees
5004 - School Year/Memberships

5001 - Snack Bar Sales/Hot Lunch
Camps

5008 -
5000 - Earned Income - Other
Total 5000 - Earned Income

5100 - Grants
5130 - Restricted

5105 - Unrestricted
5100 - Grants - Other
Total 5100 - Grants
5200 - Donations
5215 - Board Member Donations
5201 - Unsolicited Funds
Total 5200 - Donations
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue

5600 - Refunds/Rebates
5900 - Interest Income

Total Income

Cost of Goods Sold
50002 - Snack Bar

Total COGS
oss Profit
Expense
7100 - Program Exp
7104 - Equipment
Total 7100 - Program Exp

7150 - Administrative Costs
7155 - Equipment Lease

Total 7150 - Administrative Costs

7200 - Fund Raiser Expense
7201 - AT&T Event Expense

Total 7200 - Fund Raiser Expense
6100 - Advertising

6120 - Automobile Expense
6150 - Bank Charges

6180 - Board Expense
6200 - Dues & Subscriptions
6300 - Entertainment
6350 - Human Resources Costs
6400 - Insurance
6410 - Workmans' Comp
6400 - Insurance - Other
Total 6400 - Insurance

6500 - Interest Expense
6600 - Janitorial

6650 - Linen Service
6710 - Meals
7037 - Payroll Expenses

7038 - Gross Wages

7050 - Payroll Taxes

7040 - Payroll Services
Total 7037 - Payroll Expenses
7300 - Postage
7400 - Professional Services

7410 - Accounting
Total 7400 - Professional Services
7500 - Repair & Maintenance
7700 - Security
7750 - Supplies

7751 - Office

7750 - Supplies - Other

Total 7750 - Supplies

c general Yearly Event After School/Drop Ins Camps Jujitsu Parents Night Out
Administrative Facility Rental i ( isi Total Fundraising Grants (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) Total Programs TOTAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 240.00 0.00 240.00 240.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 986.11 2,618.60 0.00 0.00 3,604.71 3,604.71
0.00 3,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,250.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33,650.62 0.00 0.00 884.00 34,534.62 34,534.62
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 15.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 25.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 87,349.71 0.00 0.00 87,349.71 87,349.71
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 3,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,646.73 89,983.31 240.00 884.00 125,754.04 129,004.04
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 42,462.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 42,462.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,312.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,312.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 79,275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 79,275.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 13,141.30 0.00 13,141.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,141.30
200.00 0.00 0.00 56,634.50 228315 58,917.65 6,315.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 70,432.65
200.00 0.00 0.00 69,775.80 228315 72,058.95 6,315.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 83,573.95
0.00 0.00 33,500.00 1,508.09 0.00 35,008.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.00 70.00 35,078.09
27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.00
2.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.09
236.09 3,250.00 33,500.00 71,283.89 228315 107,067.04 85,500.00 34,646.73 94,983.31 240.00 954.00 130,824.04 326,967.17
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 343.20 809.90 0.00 0.00 1,153.10 1,153.10
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 343.20 809.90 0.00 0.00 1,153.10 1,153.10
236.09 3,250.00 33,500.00 71,283.89 228315 107,067.04 85,590.00 34,303.53 94,173.41 240.00 954.00 129,670.94 325,814.07
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131.07 0.00 0.00 131.07 131.07
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131.07 0.00 0.00 131.07 131.07
83.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.44
83.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.44
109.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 109.21
109.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 109.21
2,908.45 0.00 0.00 3218.20 0.00 321820 0.00 345.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 345.00 647165
0.00 0.00 229.23 0.00 0.00 22923 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22923
1,260.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.10 1,281.62
142.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 142.02
10,077.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,077.74
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00 394.22 0.00 0.00 43422 434.22
25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00
6,788.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,788.00
11,883.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,883.73
18,671.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,671.73
39.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.80
1,920.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,954.42 6,695.84 0.00 0.00 10,650.26 12,570.63
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 330.55 691.55 0.00 0.00 1,022.10 1,022.10
291.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29138
46,222.28 0.00 1,501.41 7.990.55 0.00 9,491.96 0.00 10,132.86 76,703.31 0.00 1,055.96 87,802.13 143,606.37
2,848.26 0.00 166.47 784.48 0.00 950.95 0.00 870.47 7.319.73 0.00 102.38 8,292.58 12,091.79
542458 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5424.58
54,495.12 0.00 1,667.88 8,775.03 0.00 10,442.91 0.00 11,003.33 84,023.04 0.00 1,158.34 96,184.71 161,122.74
7.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.38
11,762.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,762.34
11,762.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,762.34
16,201.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.00 0.00 0.00 278.00 16,479.69
1,968.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,968.00
3,977.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 361.72 1,124.27 0.00 0.00 1,485.99 5462.99
1,162.59 0.00 0.00 722.08 0.00 722,08 0.00 2,601.31 16,007.71 0.00 0.00 18,699.02 20,583.69
5,130.59 0.00 0.00 722.08 0.00 722.08 0.00 2,963.03 17,221.98 0.00 0.00 20,185.01 26,046.68

Page 1



2:10PM

03/22/22

Accrual Basis

Carmel Youth Center
Profit & Loss

January through December 2021

7800 - Taxes
7820 - Sales Taxes

Total 7800 - Taxes

7930 - Telephone
8100 - Ty portation
7900 - Utilities

7907 - Trash

7901 - Water

7902 - Cable

7904 - Gas & Electric

7906 - Internet Service

Total 7900 - Utilities
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
9998 - Grant
9999 - PPP Forgiveness
Total Other Income

Net Other Income

Net Income

general Yearly Event After School/Drop Ins Camps Jujitsu Parents Night Out
Administrative Facility Rental i isi Total Fundraising Grants (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) Total Programs TOTAL

211.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 211.73

211.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 211.73

1,820.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,820.23

0.00 0.00 1577.72 0.00 0.00 1,577.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,577.72
2,009.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,009.93
2,349.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,349.90
642.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 642.90
4,346.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,346.23
245464 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2454.64

11,803.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,803.60

138,939.34 0.00 347483 12,715.31 0.00 16,190.14 0.00 18,657.43 109,435.70 0.00 1,158.34 129,251.47 284,380.95

-138,703.25 3,250.00 30,025.17 58,568.58 2,283.15 90,876.90 85,590.00 15,646.10 -15,262.29 240.00 20434 419.47 41,433.12

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00

53,318.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 53,318.88

53,318.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68,318.88

53,318.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68,318.88

-85,384.37 3,250.00 30,025.17 58,568.58 2,283.15 90,876.90 100,590.00 15,646.10 -15,262.29 240.00 -204.34 419.47 109,752.00
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03/22/22

Accrual

Basis

January through December 2020

Carmel Youth Center

Profit & Loss

Ordinary Income/Expense

5000 - Earned Income
5009 - Jujutsu
5011 - Processing Fee Charged
5005 - Rental Fees
5004 - School Year/Memberships

5001 - Snack Bar Sales/Hot Lunch

Total 5000 - Earned Income

5100 - Grants
5130 - Restricted

5105 - Unrestricted
5100 - Grants - Other
Total 5100 - Grants
5200 - Donations
5215 - Board Member Donations
5201 - Unsolicited Funds
Total 5200 - Donations
5300 - Fundraiser Revenue

5600 - Refunds/Rebates
5900 - Interest Income

Total Income

Cost of Goods Sold
50001 - Hot Lunch
50002 - Snack Bar

Total COGS

Gross Profit

Expense
6100 - Advertising

6120 - Automobile Expense
6150 - Bank Charges

6200 - Dues & Subscriptions
6300 - Entertainment

6310 - Equipment Rental

6350 - Human Resources Costs

6400 - Insurance
6410 - Workmans' Comp
6400 - Insurance - Other

Total 6400 - Insurance

6500 - Interest Expense
6600 - Janitorial

6650 - Linen Service

6710 - Meals

7037 - Payroll Expenses
7038 - Gross Wages
7050 - Payroll Taxes

7040 - Payroll Services

Total 7037 - Payroll Expenses

7300 - Postage

7400 - Professional Services
7410 - Accounting

Total 7400 - Professional Services

7500 - Repair & Maintenance
7502 - Facility

7500 - Repair & Maintenance - Other

Total 7500 - Repair & Maintenance
7700 - Security
7750 - Supplies
7751 - Office
7750 - Supplies - Other
Total 7750 - Supplies

7800 - Taxes
7820 - Sales Taxes
7800 - Taxes - Other

Total 7800 - Taxes

7930 - Telephone
8100 - Transportation
6700 - Travel
7900 - Utilities
7907 - Trash
7901 - Water
7902 - Cable

AT&T Fundraising-general MC Gives After School/Drop Ins Camps Jujitsu Parents Night Out
Administrative Facility Rental isi ( isi ( isi Total Fundraising Grants (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) Total Programs TOTAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 515.00 0.00 515.00 540,00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,330.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,330.26 1,330.26
0.00 225.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 21,235.70 7,424.80 0.00 495.00 29,155.50 29,205.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 2,086.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,086.22 2,136.22

0.00 225.00 0.00 125.00 0.00 125.00 0.00 24,652.18 7,424.80 515.00 495.00 33,086.98 33,436.98
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,650.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 63,998.10 0.00 63,998.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63,998.10

0.00 0.00 0.00 65,648.10 0.00 65,648.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65,648.10

0.00 0.00 30,837.74 100.00 321874 34,156.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,156.48

20.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,01

6.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.56

26.57 225.00 30,837.74 65,873.10 321874 99,929.58 25,000.00 24,652.18 7,424.80 515.00 495.00 33,086.98 158,268.13

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 116.46 0.00 0.00 116.46 116.46

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,029.18 266.34 0.00 0.00 1,205.52 1,205.52

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,029.18 382.80 0.00 0.00 1,411.98 1,411.98

26.57 225.00 30,837.74 65,873.10 321874 99,929.58 25,000.00 23,623.00 7,042.00 515.00 495.00 31,675.00 156,856.15

2,028.57 0.00 0.00 684.32 0.00 684.32 0.00 192.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 192.90 2,905.79

369.23 0.00 0.00 12.99 0.00 12.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38222

274286 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,742.86

3,694.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 595.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 595.48 4,289.96

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.90 73.90

0.00 0.00 0.00 588.66 0.00 588.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 588.66

503.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 503.83
6,538.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,538.00
20,167.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20,167.70

26,705.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,705.70

19.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.85

8,975.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8975.70

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,275.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,275.63 1,275.63

860.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 290.15 0.00 0.00 177.65 467.80 1,328.31
59,803.07 0.00 0.00 2,088.16 0.00 2,088.16 0.00 29,558.09 5,853.70 0.00 512.86 35,924.65 97,815.88
4233011 0.00 0.00 214.63 0.00 214,63 0.00 2,819.48 596.35 0.00 58.08 3473.91 8,018.65
5313.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5313.79

69,446.97 0.00 0.00 2,302.79 0.00 2,302.79 0.00 32,377.57 6,450.05 0.00 57094 39,398.56 111,148.32

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 115.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 115.00 115.00
8,662.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,662.50

8,662.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,662.50
2,930.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,930.00
1,038.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,038.15

3,968.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3968.15

1,795.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,795.31
207.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,216.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,216.85 1,424.65
338.47 0.00 31.62 370.16 0.00 401.78 0.00 1,835.74 385261 180.00 109.56 5977.91 6.718.16

546.27 0.00 31.62 370.16 0.00 40178 0.00 3,052.59 385261 180.00 109.56 7,194.76 8,142.81
153.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153.00
-96.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -96.98

56.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.02

4,548.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,548.76

0.00 0.00 4,892.24 0.00 0.00 4,892.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,892.24

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 30.00
1,923.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,923.87
1,336.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,336.45
44492 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 444.92
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03/22/22

Accrual Basis

Carmel Youth Center
Profit & Loss

January through December 2020

7904 - Gas & Electric
7906 - Internet Service
7908 Taxes & Fees
Total 7900 - Utilities
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

AT&T Fundraising-general MC Gives After School/Drop Ins Camps Jujitsu Parents Night Out
Administrative Facility Rental isi ( isi ( isi Total Fundraising Grants (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) (Programs) Total Programs TOTAL
4,508.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,508.41
2,102.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,102.71
17.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1752
10,333.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,333.88
145,258.59 0.00 4,923.86 3,958.92 0.00 8,882.78 0.00 38,003.22 10,302.66 180.00 858.15 49,344.03 203,485.40
-145,232.02 225,00 25,913.88 61,914.18 321874 91,046.80 25,000.00 -14,380.22 -3,260.66 335.00 -363.15 -17,669.03 -46,629.25
-145,232.02 225.00 25,913.88 61,914.18 321874 91,046.80 25,000.00 -14,380.22 -3,260.66 335.00 -363.15 -17,669.03 -46,629.25
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2:12 PM Carmel Youth Center
03122122 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2020
Dec 31, 20
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - Checking Wells Fargo-8686 58,448.10
1002 - Checking WF-9356 (Petty Cash) 570.18
1020 - BAC Community Bank 13,467.82
Total Checking/Savings 72,486.10
Other Current Assets
1300 - Snack Bar Inventory 1,006.66
Total Other Current Assets 1,006.66
Total Current Assets 73,492.76
Fixed Assets
1550 - Land and Building 343,582.00
1580 - Building improvements 415,287.76
1590 - Machinery and equipment 40,472.72
1588 - Landscape improvements 7,806.27
1599 - Accumulated Depreciation -575,515.00
1598 - Furniture and Fixtures 4,617.10
Total Fixed Assets 236,250.85
TOTAL ASSETS 309,743.61
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 550.00
Total Accounts Payable 550.00
Credit Cards
1015 - WF Visa cc-5977 -26.00
Total Credit Cards -26.00
Total Current Liabilities 524.00
Long Term Liabilities
2200 - SBA Stimulus 10,000.00
2210 - PPP Loan 44,587.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 54,587.00
Total Liabilities 55,111.00
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings -285,957.76
4000 - Net Assets
4350 - Fund Balance Acc. Depreciation -532,710.00
4100 - Unrestricted
4101 - Operating 1,044,929.62
Total 4100 - Unrestricted 1,044,929.62
4300 - Permanently restricted
4301 - Permanent endowments 75,000.00
Total 4300 - Permanently restricted 75,000.00
Total 4000 - Net Assets 587,219.62
Net Income -46,629.25
Total Equity 254,632.61

Page 1
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2:12 PM Carmel Youth Center
03/22/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2020
Dec 31, 20
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 309,743.61
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Attachment 7

— City Council
- Discretionary Grant
== Program

Organization Information

Name of Applicant Organization:Community Human Services

Name and Position/Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Robin McCrae, Chief Executive Officer
Organization Mailing Address:P.O. Box 3076, Monterey, CA 93942-3076

Telephone Number:831-658-3811

Email:rmccrae@chservices.org

Geographic Area(s) the Organization serves:Monterey County

Age groups served by the Organization:0-12, 13-17, 18-24, 25-34, 35-44, 45-54, 55-64, 65 and over

Number of Carmel-by-the-Sea (93921) residents the Organization serves:15 in FY2020-21; 5 in FY2021-22 (thru
Jan '21)

Is this Organization incorporated as a Nonprofit Organization?:Yes

Is this Organization a Carmel school?:No

Project/Program Details

Project/Program Name:Casa de Noche Buena
Amount requested (up to $3,000):$3,000

Please provide a description of the Project, Program, or Service that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant
funding will be used to support.Grant funding will be used for general operating support at Casa de Noche
Buena, the Monterey Peninsula's only emergency homeless shelter for single women and families with children
located in Seaside. Casa de Noche Buena (CDNB) provides a maximum of 35 shelter beds, depending on the
sizes of the families and ages of the children. Supportive services include intensive case management, housing
navigation, linkages to income, employment and education, assessment and referral to health, mental health and
substance abuse services, and information and referral to other community services. Our services are
evidence-based (Motivational Interviewing, e.g.), trauma-informed (Seeking Safety, e.g.) and client-centered.
Length of stay varies from 90 to 180 days depending on individual/ family need.

Please provide the project, program, or service objectives that the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea grant funding
will be used to support.The overarching goal at CDNB is to provide our guests safe shelter and supportive



03/31/2022 21:59:53
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services that lead to their securing permanent housing and economic stability. Our objectives are: Attachment 7
1. Provide shelter to 75 individuals per year

2. Provide 5,000 bed nights

3. Provide 16,000 meals

4. 100% will participate in case management/housing navigation

5. 60% will exit to permanent housing

6. 10% will exit to transitional housing

Please describe the specific benefit to the Carme-by-the-Sea community that your project, program, or
service will provide, including the target population and number of community members that will be served.
CDNB provides shelter opportunities to eligible women and families in Monterey County, including residents of
Carmel-by-the-Sea. It benefits peninsula communities by providing homeless women and families with safe exits off
city streets and eventually into permanent. This has a positive impact on law enforcement, public maintenance,
public works, tourism, hospitality, business and schools. Target population is single women and families with
children. We intend to serve 75 individuals per year. Last year was our first year in operation. We opened January
19, 2021. From that date to December 31, 2021, we served 61 individuals and provided 5,460 bed nights and
16,416 meals. Sixty-eight percent exited to permanent housing.

Please describe how your organization would use the funding awarded, including equipment or services
that would be purchased and why.Funding would be used for general operating support of the shelter. General

operating includes staff salaries and benefits, utilities, maintenance and repairs, vehicle maintenance and fuel, food,
supplies, etc.

Attachments

Please provide the following attachments via email to cityclerk@ci.carmel.ca.us. Make sure to include the name of
the Organization in the subject line of the email and on all attachments.

- A copy of the Organization's proof of non-profit status, with a copy of the letter from the IRS.
- A detailed, line item budget plan for the project, program, or service's use of the grant funds.

- A current, detailed operating budget that includes information on your organization's annual sources of revenue
received.

- The Organization's past two year's financial statements - including the current year - with balance sheets, sources

of revenue, profit/loss statements and indicating the percentage of revenue that is used for administration, salaries
and program costs.

Certification and Signature
The Applicant Organization acknowledges and agrees to the following:

- That it is subject to all City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program requirements, including submittal deadlines
and payment disbursements.

- That it will not spend City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funds on ineligible activities/services as
outlined in City Council Policy C16- : City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program.
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Attachment 7

- The awarding of City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding does not constitute an automatic annual
allocation.

- City Council Discretionary Funds Grant Program funding, if allocated, will be for the sole use as reflected in this
application form.

- As a condition of receiving funds, an agreement with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea in a form and with content
provided by the City, will be signed and executed by a duly authorized representative of the applicant organization.

- All funds awarded must be spent by the end of the fiscal year (June 30).

- The recipient shall provide a full accounting with documentation on the use of awarded funds within 30 days after
the end of the Project/Program/Service or by June 30 of the fiscal year in which funds were awarded.

- The recipient shall return to the City any funds not spent or documented per the signed agreement.
- The City reserves the right to conduct an audit and/or require additional backup information to substantiate how
funds received from the City were expended. Failure to provide proper documentation may jeopardize future

funding.

| certify on behalf of the above named nonprofit applicant organization that | have read, understand and agree that
the aforesaid information is accurate, factual, and current.

Name and Title of staff applying on behalf of the Organization:Robin McCrae
Organization name:Community Human Services

Date:03/31/2022



010493

‘ATE OF CALIFORNIA

IANCHISE TAX BOARD
2. BOX 1286
\NCHO CORDQVA, CA. 95741-1286

December 29, 1992

In reply refer +to
340:6  :CCL

COMHMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES
PO BX 3076
MONTEREY CA 93942

Purpose i CHARITABLE
Code Section ' : 237014

Form of Oxzganization : Association
Accounting Period Ending: June 30
Organization Number : 9787059 CH6SP

This letter confirnms your previous exemption from state franchise and
income tax under Section 237014, Revenue and Taxation Code. In
confirming your exempt status, we have made no eXamination of your
current activities. If the organization has changed its operation,
character, or purpose since exemption was originally granted, +that
change must be reported immediately to this office.

You may be required to file Form 199 (Exenpt Organization Annual
Information Return) on or before the 15th day of the 5th month (4 1,2
months) after the close of your accounting period. See annual
instructions with forms for requirements.

You are not required to file state franchise or income tax returns
unless you have income subject to +the unrelated business income +ax
under Section 23731 of the Code. In this event, you are required to
file Form 109 (Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return) by the
15th day of the 5th month (4 1,2 months) after the close of vyour
annual accounting period. :

Contributions made to you are deductible by donors as provided by
Sections 17214 through 17216.2 and 2u357 through 24359 of the Code,
unless your purpose is testing for Public Safety.

K SCHULTZ

EXEMPT ORGANIZATION UNIT
CORPORATION AUDIT SECTION
Telephone (916) 369-4171

RTF:



Attachment 7

Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
District ) P.0. Box 2350 Los Angeles, Calif. 90053
Director

Person to Contact:

> Barbara S. Cowans
Community Human Services Telephone Number:
P O Box 3076 : (213) 894-2336
Monterey, CA 93942-3076 Refer Reply lo:
" EO(1102)92
Dale:

May 18, 1993

RE: Community Human Services
EIN: 94-6367167

Gentlemen:

This letter is in response to your request for a copy of
the determination letter for the above named organization.

Our records indicate that this organization was recognized
to be exempt from Federal Income Tax in June 1982, as described
in Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). It is further
classified as an organization that is not a private foundation
as defined in Section 509(a) of the code, because it is an
organization described in Section 170(b) (1) (A) (Vi) .

The exempt status for the determination letter issued in
June 1982, continues to be in effect.

If you need further assistance, pledse contact our office
at the above address or telephone number.

Sincerely,

(aslana b Lesani

Barbara S. Cowans
Disclosure Assistant



Revenues

Contracts

Program Fees

Private Pay

Grants

Joint Powers Agency Support
Donations

Private Insurance

Other Income

Total Revenues

Expenses

Salaries

Employee Benefits

Occupancy Expense
Professional Fees

Office and Program Supplies
Food and Personal Expense
Depreciation/Building Expense
Equip Lease/Printing/Copier
Communications

Insurance

Interest Expense
Medical/Medications/Lab Exp
Conferences and Training
Vehicle/Travel/Mileage Expense
Dues/License/Publications
Advertising Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Administrative Cost

Total Expenses

Net Income

Community Human Services

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2023

Casa de Noche Buena

Budget

0.00

0.00

0.00
707,000.00
0.00
58,041.00
0.00

0.00

765,041.00

308,734.00
49,402.00
80,977.00
32,955.00
13,529.00
93,960.00

168,915.00

2,716.00
4,620.00
6,522.00
0.00
6,000.00
1,000.00
3,900.00
450.00
3,796.00
0.00
146,700.00

924,176.00

(159,135.00)

3/31/2022 at 3:36 PM

For Management Purposes Only

Attachment 7

Page: 1



Revenues

Contracts

Program Fees

Private Pay

Grants

Joint Powers Agency Support
Donations

Private Insurance

Other Income

Total Revenues

Expenses

Salaries

Employee Benefits

Occupancy Expense
Professional Fees

Office and Program Supplies
Food and Personal Expense
Depreciation/Building Expense
Equip Lease/Printing/Copier
Communications

Insurance

Interest Expense
Medical/Medications/Lab Exp
Conferences and Training
Vehicle/Travel/Mileage Expense
Dues/License/Publications
Advertising Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Administrative Cost

Total Expenses

Net Income

Community Human Services

Budget

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2022

Agency

Budget

5,602,977.00
209,441.00
248,107.00
1,547,156.00
212,400.00
258,041.00
0.00
2,000.00

Attachment 7

8,080,122.00

4,565,606.00
991,994.00
833,216.00
257,555.00
142,126.00
212,640.00
332,181.00
35,536.00
82,440.00
80,705.00
143,123.00
96,250.00
31,175.00
47,854.00
74,513.00
76,196.00
0.00

2.00

8,003,112.00

77,010.00

3/31/2022 at 3:38 PM

For Management Purposes Only
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Human Services
Monterey, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major enterprise fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Community Human Services, a Joint
Powers Authority of California local governments, (Agency) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
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on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of each enterprise major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Community Human Services, as of June 30,
2021, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the management's discussion and analysis on pages 5-12 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information such as the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
(SEFA), as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the other supplementary information, such as
the Combining Schedule of Functional Revenues and Expenses and budgetary
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comparison information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The SEFA, the Combining Schedule of Functional Revenues and Expenses and the
budgetary comparison information are the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the SEFA, the Combining Schedule of Functional
Revenues and Expenses and the budgetary comparison information are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 9, 2021, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Loomelee, Katwawre § /a]ée-, AT

Salinas, California
December 9, 2021



COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

This section of Community Human Services’ (Agency) annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the Agency’'s financial performance during the year
ended on June 30, 2021. Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes and currently known
facts, please read it in conjunction with the Agency’s basic financial statements, which
begin on page 14. Comparisons to and analysis of the prior year are incorporated
where appropriate.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Agency's net position increased by $2,996,593 (or 95.2%) during 2021.
Since the Agency engages only in business type activities, the increase is all in
the category of business-type net position. Net position was $6,145,321 and
$3,148,728 for 2021 and 2020, respectively.

e The Agency'’s return on total ending net position was 48.8%.

e Total cost of all the Agency’s programs was $6,801,254 and $6,392,509 for 2021
and 2020, respectively.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements, an Independent Auditors’ Report thereon and this Management's
Discussion and Analysis. Readers of these financial statements are encouraged to
consider the report as a whole to obtain a complete understanding of the Agency’s
financial condition.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is a report of the Agency’'s assets, liabilities and net
position. Assets and liabilities are reported at book value on an accrual basis as of the
statement date. Assets and liabilities have been segregated between current (expected
to be liquidated or paid within one year) and noncurrent. Net Position is reported in
major categories reflecting any restrictions thereon.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the
Agency’s revenue earned and expenses incurred during the period on an accrual basis.
The Statement has been segregated into operating and nonoperating sections.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the sources and uses of cash and is segregated
into operating, capital and related financing, noncapital financing and investing
activities. The direct method of cash flows reporting has been used and the indirect
method of calculating cash provided (used) by operations is also presented.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide more detailed information about the Agency’s
most significant funds. The Agency consists of exclusively Enterprise Funds, but the
focus now is on Major Funds, rather than fund types. In order to be selected as a major
fund, the fund’s assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses should be at least 10% or
more of the fund type’s total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses and at least 5% or
more of the Agency’s total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses. Since the Agency
has only one fund type, the 10% criteria is used to determine major funds. The
Enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting utilized by private sector
accounting.

THE AGENCY’S FUNDS

Business Type Funds

Operating Fund — This is the Agency’s main operating fund.

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Program Fund — Under the
Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Fund, the Agency provides residential
drug treatment, outpatient drug treatment, a supported sober living environment and a
youth substance abuse education and intervention program. The Fund consists of
seven programs:

Genesis House Perinatal Program

Genesis House Co-Ed Program

Sober Living

Drug and Alcohol Intervention Services for Youth (DAISY) Program
Outpatient Drug Treatment Centers in Salinas and Monterey
Substance Use Prevention Program

Narcotic Treatment Program Fund — Under the Narcotic Treatment Program Fund,
the Agency operates Off Main Clinic, a medication-assisted treatment program. The
Clinic offers closely monitored methadone dispensing and substance abuse counseling
to Medi-Cal and private pay patients.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

THE AGENCY’S FUNDS (Continued)

Business Type Funds (Continued)

Counseling Services — Under the Counseling Services Fund, the Agency provides
outpatient mental health counseling, parent education and family safety-net services.
The Fund consists of eight programs operating out of the Family Service Centers in
Salinas and Seaside:

Pathways to Safety Program

Access to Treatment Outpatient Mental Health Program

Counseling and Therapy Services (CATS) Program for individuals with HIV/AIDS
Parent Education Program

Other Non-Major Funds — In addition to the major funds above, the Agency also
maintains the following non-major funds:

Basic Center Program for runaway and homeless youth
Street Outreach Program for runaway and homeless youth
Safe Passage Program for homeless youth ages 18 — 21
Domestic Violence/Anger Management Program
Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program
Youth Shelter, an overnight shelter in downtown Monterey for homeless
youth
Salinas Street Outreach for runaway and homeless youth
Casa de Noche Buena, an emergency shelter for women and families with children
Shuman HeartHouse, a homeless shelter for women and families with children

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

A comparative summary of the Agency’s Statement of Net Position as of June 30, which
generally reflects its financial condition, is as follows:

2021 2020 Changes % Changes

Assets
Current assets $ 12,652,798 $ 9,572,616 $ 3,080,182 32.2%
Capital and other assets 7,374,913 3,145,273 4,229,640 134.5%
Total Assets 20,027,711 12,717,889 7,309,822 57.5%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Statement of Net Position (Continued)

2021 2020 Changes % Changes
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 10,966,460 $ 8,205,415 $ 2,761,045 33.6%
Long-term obligations 2,915,930 1,363,746 1,552,184 113.8%
Total Liabilities 13,882,390 9,569,161 4,313,229 45.1%
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets 4,474,885 2,213,006 2,261,879 102.2%
Restricted 2,261,649 2,012,906 248,743 12.4%
Unrestricted (591,213) (1,077,184) 485,971 45.1%
Total Net Position $ 6,145321 § 3,148,728 $ 2.996,593 95.2%

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position

Current year's net position increased by $2,996,593 from the prior year. The current
year increase was related primarily to increases in public grants and contracts offset by
decreases in salaries and benefits.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

A comparative summary of the Agency’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, which generally reflects its results of operations as of June 30,
is as follows:

2021 2020 Changes _% Changes
Revenues
Program revenues:
Public grants and contracts $ 7,634,580 $ 6,314,690 $ 1,319,890 20.9%
Charges and fees 302,894 369,208 (66,314) (18.0%)
Private grants and
contributions 1,466,966 297,365 1,169,601 393.3%
Joint Powers Agency
support 200,296 173,950 26,346 15.2%
Other revenue 193,111 15,707 177,404 1,129.5%
Total Revenues 9,797,847 7,170,920 2,626,927 36.6%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

2021 2020 Changes % Changes
Expenses
General $ 1,000,845 $ 955,051 § 45,794 4.8%
Off Main Clinic Methadone
Program 1,172,659 1,128,917 43,742 3.9%
Genesis House Co-Ed Program 994,383 1,126,010 (131,627) (11.7%)
Access to Treatment Outpatient
Mental Health Program 589,031 672,498 (83,467) (12.4%)
Genesis House Perinatal Program 42,488 48,063 (5,575) (11.6%)
Basic Center Program for
Runaway and Homeless Youth 27,236 186,040 (158,804) (85.4%)
Street Outreach Program for
Runaway and Homeless Youth 316,222 241,096 75,126 31.2%
Safe Passage Program 202,995 175,681 27,314 15.5%
Mental Health Services
Act Programs (PE, CATS A&B) 151,220 173,730 (22,510) (13.0%)
DAISY Program 200,602 159,949 40,653 25.4%
Pathways to Safety Program 158,341 164,553 (6,212) (3.8%)
Outpatient Drug
Treatment Centers 413,881 460,185 (46,304) (10.1%)
Youth Shelter 122,690 50,970 71,720 140.7%
Self-Referred Mental Health
Counseling Program - 27,125 (27,125) (100.0%)
Supervised Visitation and
Exchange Program 19,103 26,834 (7,731) (28.8%)
Domestic Violence/Anger
Management Program 24,067 39,902 (15,835) (39.7%)
Sober Living 222,903 76,988 145,915 189.5%
SuperKids/Super Teens
Program - 6,828 (6,828) (100.0%)
Substance Use Prevention
Program 412,724 408,773 3,951 1.0%
Micro Innovation - 20,362 (20,362) (100.0%)
Salinas Street Outreach 291,352 242,954 48,398 19.9%
Casa de Noche Buena 434,007 - 434,007 100.0%
Heart House 4,505 - 4,505 100.0%
Total Expenses 6,801,254 6,392,509 408,745 6.4%
Change in
Net Position $ 2996593 $ 778411 2,218,182 285.0%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position

Current year revenue increased by $2,626,927 over the prior year due to increases in
public grants and contracts and increases in private grants and contributions, of which
$2,466,613 is revenue from various capital grants for asset purchases which will be
depreciated over future years. The additional increase in revenue is due mainly to a
large insurance payment for property damage at Elm House.

Current year expenses increased by $408,745 due primarily to partial year operating
expenses of $434,007 in a new program, Casa de Noche Buena, offset by savings in
other programs.

Note that the increase in net position of $2,218,182 is due primarily to capital grants of
$2,466,613 which purchased assets to be depreciated over future years.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)
Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

Attachment 7

As of June 30, 2021, the Agency had $7,374,913 invested in a variety of capital assets
as reflected in the following schedule, which represents a net increase, including
additions, deductions and depreciation, of 134.48% or $4,229,640 from the prior year.

2021 2020 Changes
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $1,948,995 $ 486,495 $ 1,462,500
Construction in Progress 44,654 285,409 (240,755)
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 1993649 §$ 771904 $ 1,221,745
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 5,422,423 3,877,604 1,544,819
Office Equipment 36,294 36,294 -
Transportation Equipment 259,954 237,319 22,635
Furniture and Fixtures 186,118 186,118 -
Leasehold Improvements 1,764,084 141,469 1,622,615
Operating and Other Equipment 15,394 10,254 5,140
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 7,684,267 4,489,058 3,195,209
Less accumulated depreciation 2,303,003 2,115,689 187,314
Total capital assets, being
depreciated — net 5,381,264 2,373,369 3,007,895
Total Capital Assets $7,374913 45,27 $ 4,229,640

Debt Outstanding

% Changes

300.6%
(84.4%)

158.3%
39.8%
0.0%
9.5%
0.0%
1,147.0%
50.1%
71.2%
8.9%
126.7%

134.5%

Long-term debt obligations at June 30, 2021 and 2020, consist of the following:

2021 2020 Changes

Note payable to Mechanics Bank

Collateralized by Sonoma

Avenue property $ 904,470 $ 932,267 $ (27,797)
PPP Loan 818,005 818,005 -
Shuman HeartHouse Note 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Less: current portion 846,545 386,526 460,019

Total Long-Term Debt $2875930 $1.363,746 $ 1,512,184

11
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0.0%
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

Net increase to long-term debt of $1,512,184 is a result of acquiring the Franklin Street
property (Shuman HeartHouse) and principal payments for the Sonoma Avenue
property. A Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan was acquired during April 2020
for $818,005 less $846,545 which is the current portions of the PPP Loan and Sonoma
Avenue note payable totaling $818,005 and $28,540, respectively.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS

The Agency will be significantly expanding its mental health services division with the
addition of several new contracts for fiscal years 2021-22 and 2022-23 with the
Behavioral Health Bureau and the Department of Social Services of Monterey County.
These contracts total almost $950,000 a year in new funding and include Short-term
Therapeutic Services, Family Support Groups, Multi-cultural Outreach and
Engagement, Migrant Farmworker Education and Outreach, and Parenting Education.

The Agency received a significant donation and pledge totaling over $3,000,000 in 2021
to acquire a building for a 35-bed homeless shelter for single women and families with
children in Monterey. The building has ample water credits and is located in the City-
approved shelter overlay zone. The Agency has embarked on a capital campaign to
raise $3,200,000 to renovate the facility. Construction is scheduled to start in the spring
of 2022 with the shelter, Shuman HeartHouse, opening in the spring of 2023.

The Agency will fully utilize the Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP)
multi-year grants that were awarded in 2020 for the Casa de Noche Buena shelter and
street outreach services for youth. The focus of State and Federal funding to address
homelessness is shifting toward permanent housing solutions. Community Human
Services will be expanding its fund development staff in 2022 with the goal of increasing
private gifts from individuals and businesses. This strategy will help to lessen the
reliance on government funding for programs.

The Agency continues to adjust the working environments in response to COVID-19
and the challenges brought by the pandemic. Most of the equipment and supply needs
have been met. Policies and procedures are updated frequently as new
recommendations are made by CDC and local health officials. Staff continues to
provide essential services in person or via telehealth. However, uncertainties and
stress are taking a toll on staff. Position vacancies have increased and been more
difficult to fill. We anticipate that this situation will persist.

12
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report has been designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s
accounting for anyone interested in its finances. Questions concerning any of the
information should be addressed to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer,
Community Human Services, P.O. Box 3076, Monterey, California 93942.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
ASSETS
Prevention and
Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 865805 § - $ -
Contracts and grants receivable - Note 4 31,446 559,561 325,542
Prepaid expenses 87,373 - -
Investments - Note 2 862,224 - -
Due from other funds 7,320,780 - 2,330,997
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,167,628 559,561 2,656,539
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net - Note 5 - 1,895,200 3,700
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,167,628 $ 2,454,761 $ 2,660,239
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 77288 $ - $ -
Accrued retirement payable 36,728 - -
Unearned revenue 1,753 - -
Due to other funds - 3,135,231 -
Current portion of notes payable - Note 6 818,005 28,540 -
Accrued vacation payable 196,227 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,130,001 3,163,771 -
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable - net of current portion - Note 6 - 875,930 -
Other noncurrent liabilities - - -
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - 875,930 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,130,001 4,039,701 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets - 990,730 8,142
Restricted for narcotic prevention - - 2,261,649
Unrestricted 8,037,627 (2,575,670) 390,448
TOTAL NET POSITION 8,037,627 (1,584,940) 2,660,239
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 9,167,628 § 2,454,761 $ 2,660,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Contracts and grants receivable - Note 4
Prepaid expenses
Investments - Note 2
Due from other funds

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net - Note 5

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued retirement payable
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Current portion of notes payable - Note 6
Accrued vacation payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable - net of current portion - Note 6
Other noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for narcotic prevention
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Attachment 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
ASSETS
Other
Counseling Non-major

Services Funds Total
$ - $ - $ 865,805
156,336 112,734 1,185,619
- - 87,373
- - 862,224
- - 9,651,777
156,336 112,734 12,652,798
243,691 5,232,322 7,374,913
$ 400,027 $ 5,345,056 $ 20,027,711

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ - $ - $ 77,288
- - 36,728
- 156,142 157,895
2,491,044 4,025,502 9,651,777
- - 846,545
- - 196,227
2,491,044 4,181,644 10,966,460
- 2,000,000 2,875,930
- 40,000 40,000
- 2,040,000 2,915,930
2,491,044 6,221,644 13,882,390
243,691 3,232,322 4,474,885
. - 2,261,649
(2,334,708) (4,108,910) (591,213)
(2,091,017) (876,588) 6,145,321
$ 400,027 $ 5,345,056 $ 20,027,711

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Prevention and

Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Treatment
Fund Abuse Program Program
OPERATING REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 1,322,329 § 2,523,019 §$ 1,628,056
Charges and fees - 107,831 127,512
Total Operating Revenues 1,322,329 2,630,850 1,755,568
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 637,203 1,224,568 575,426
Employee benefits 159,015 255,939 159,672
Facilities rental 56,525 72,353 69,720
Professional fees 44,296 88,577 77,139
Utilities and maintenance 25,950 242,470 121,646
Operating supplies 25,425 22,382 28,397
Medical supplies and laboratory fees - 4,576 75,038
Food 56 84,389 417
Insurance 7,485 26,828 6,874
Auto and travel 317 14,002 61
Telephone 9,189 19,153 8,572
Conferences and meetings 1,783 3,612 2,004
Advertising 9,906 7,774 4,231
Equipment rental 5,125 5,991 3,261
Miscellaneous 851 - -
Dues, licenses and fees 16,404 8,103 34,073
Client costs - 57,582 -
Printing and publications 1,315 2,257 3,907
Depreciation - 88,146 2,221
Total Operating Expenses 1,000,845 2,228,702 1,172,659
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 321,484 402,148 582,909
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Joint Powers Agency support 200,296 - -
Private grants and contributions 1,293,176 4,320 7,465
Other local sources 25,184 163,312 -
Interest expense - (58,279) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,518,656 99,353 7,465
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 1,840,140 501,501 590,374
Expenses transfered from (to) other funds (1,000,828) 399,808 204,433
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 2,840,968 101,693 385,941
NET POSITION,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,196,659 (1,686,633) 2,274,298
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 8,037,627 $ (1,584,940) $ 2,660,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Other
Counseling Non-Major
Services Funds Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 915,827 § 1,245,349  § 7,634,580
Charges and fees 8,812 58,739 302,894
Total Operating Revenues 924,639 1,304,088 7,937,474
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 584,603 734,885 3,756,685
Employee benefits 128,863 128,940 832,429
Facilities rental 45,814 16,499 260,911
Professional fees 12,665 30,023 252,700
Utilities and maintenance 61,351 114,583 566,000
Operating supplies 8,514 92,920 177,638
Medical supplies and laboratory fees - 4,465 84,079
Food - 32,821 117,683
Insurance 7,228 21,331 69,746
Auto and travel 487 25,782 40,649
Telephone 13,682 21,895 72,491
Conferences and meetings 1,822 31,656 40,877
Advertising 7,679 15,546 45,136
Equipment rental 3,107 5,659 23,143
Miscellaneous - - 851
Dues, licenses and fees 13,399 2,646 74,625
Client costs - 7,840 65,422
Printing and publications 754 2,262 10,495
Depreciation 8,624 152,424 251,415
Total Operating Expenses 898,592 1,442,177 6,742,975
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 26,047 (138,089) 1,194,499
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Joint Powers Agency support - - 200,296
Private grants and contributions 25,000 137,005 1,466,966
Other local sources - 14,615 193,111
Interest expense - - (58,279)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 25,000 151,620 1,802,094
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 51,047 13,531 2,996,593
Expenses transfered from (to) other funds 156,434 240,153 -
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (105,387) (226,622) 2,996,593
NET POSITION,
BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,985,630) (649,966) 3,148,728
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $  (2,091,017) $ (876,588) $ 6,145,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Prevention and

Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from clients $ - $ 107,831 $ 127,512
Cash receipts from public contracts 1,333,104 2,270,220 1,637,623
Cash payments to suppliers and employees (1,027,927) (2,140,556) (1,170,438)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 305,177 237,495 594,697

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on debt - (58,279) -
Payments on long-term debt - (27,797) -
Cash payments for acquisiton of capital assets - (78,450) -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (164,526) -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 21,956 - -
Investment purchases (424,618) - -

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES (402,662) - -

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net payments for long-term deposits -
Joint Powers Agency support 200,296

Cash receipts from private grants and contributions 1,436,445 4,320 7,465
Other local sources 555 153,312 -
Cash receipts from (paid to) other funds (1,468,884) (230,601) (602,162)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 168,412 (72,969) (594,697)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 70,927 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 794,878 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 865,805 § - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from clients
Cash receipts from public contracts
Cash payments to suppliers and employees

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on debt
Payments on long-term debt
Cash payments for acquisiton of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings
Investment purchases

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net payments for long-term deposits
Joint Powers Agency support
Cash receipts from private grants and contributions
Other local sources
Cash receipts from (paid to) other funds

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Attachment 7
Other
Counseling Non-major
Services Funds Total

$ 8812 $ 58,739 $ 302,894
870,653 1,234,998 7,346,598
(889,968) (1,289,753) (6,518,642)
(10,503) 3,984 1,130,850
- - (58,279)
. - (27,797)
- (2,410,707) (2,489,157)
- (2,410,707) (2,575,233)

- - 21,956
- - (424,618)
- - (402,662)

- 40,000 40,000

- - 200,296

25,000 35,964 1,509,194

- 14,615 168,482

(14,497) 2,316,144 -

10,503 2,406,723 1,917,972

. - 70,927

- - 794,878

$ - $ - $ 865,805

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Prevention and

Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 321,484 § 402,148 $ 582,909
Adjustments to reconcile change in
net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization - 88,146 2,221
Charge-off of uncollectible receivable 10,775 - -
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Contracts and grants receivable - (252,799) 9,567
Prepaid expenses (14,586) - -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (40,532) - -
Accrued retirement payable 5,607 - -
Worker's compensation payable (6,971) - -
Accrued vacation payable 29,400 - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 305,177  § 237,495 $ 594,697
SUPPLEMENTARY NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Property acquired with debt $ - $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Other
Counseling Non-major
Services Funds Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 26,047 $ (138,089) $ 1,194,499
Adjustments to reconcile change in
net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 8,624 152,424 251,415
Charge-off of uncollectible receivable - - 10,775
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Contracts and grants receivable (45,174) (10,351) (298,757)
Prepaid expenses - - (14,586)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable - - (40,532)
Accrued retirement payable - - 5,607
Worker's compensation payable - - (6,971)
Accrued vacation payable - - 29,400
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (10,503) § 3984 § 1,130,850
SUPPLEMENTARY NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Property acquired with debt $ - $ 2,000,000 § 2,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Organization and Description

Community Human Services (Agency) is a tax exempt, 501(c)(3) Joint Powers
Authority. The Board of Directors is made up of appointed representatives from
local governmental entities comprising the Joint Powers Authority.

The Agency, through contracts with government agencies, private grants and
donations, and client charges and fees, provides a variety of services including
outpatient counseling and therapy for people with drug or alcohol problems, an
in-house recovery center for addicted persons, and other counseling and
educational programs.

Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the Agency are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and in
compliance with requirements set by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), include funds that are controlled by or dependent on the Agency.
Control or dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption,
designation of management, and ability to significantly influence operations. All
known activities of the Agency have been included in these financial statements.
The Agency does not have component units.

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Enterprise Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an
enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Agency’s enterprise funds are service charges to clients, and contract fees
from other government agencies.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of operating the primary
activities of funds, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

The financial statements are accounted for using the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows.

Description of Funds

The accounts of the Agency are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenses. Resources are allocated
to and accounted for in proprietary funds based upon the purposes for which
spending activities are controlled.

Major Funds

Operating Fund - The Fund is the chief operating fund for the Agency. It is used
to account for the ordinary operations of the Agency. All transactions except
those accounted for in another fund are accounted for in this fund.

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Program - The Fund is used
to account separately for residential and outpatient drug treatment and recovery
options. These services include Genesis House Perinatal Program, Genesis
House Co-Ed Program, Sober Living environment, Outpatient Treatment Centers
(OTC), DAISY substance abuse program for youth and the Substance Use
Prevention Program in the Salinas Union High School District and King City
Union School District.

Narcotic Treatment Program - The Fund is used to account separately for

substance abuse counseling and methadone maintenance services at Off Main
Clinic.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Counseling Services - The Fund is used to account separately for services and
education provided to individuals and families. These services include the
Parent Education Program, Pathways to Safety, Micro Innovation and outpatient
mental health counseling at the Family Service Centers.

Non-Major Funds

Basic Center Program - The Fund is used to account for the Basic Center
Program at Safe Place, which provides runaway and homeless youth with
individual and group counseling, family counseling, family reunification or
alternate placement, temporary shelter, substance abuse education and
aftercare services.

Street Outreach Program - The Fund is used to account for the Street Outreach
Program at Safe Place, which provides runaway and homeless youth with street
outreach, informal counseling, education about sexual and personal safety,
survival aid such as food, clothing and personal care products and information
and referral to other services.

Safe Passage Program - The Fund is used to account for transitional housing
and supportive services for homeless youth ages 18-21. Services include
counseling, case management, life skills education and linkages to education,
employment and permanent housing.

Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program - The Fund is used to account
for monitored visits between children and their non-custodial parents in a safe,
family-like environment.

Domestic Violence/Anger Management Program - The Fund is used to
account for Probation-certified psycho-educational counseling groups for
domestic violence offenders and those seeking assistance with anger issues.

Youth Shelter Program - The Fund is used to account for an overnight shelter in
downtown Monterey for homeless youth.

Salinas Street Outreach — The Fund is used to account for the street outreach
program in Salinas and the Salinas Valley, which provides runaway and
homeless youth with individual and group counseling, family counseling, family
reunification or alternate placement, temporary shelter, substance abuse
education and aftercare services.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Non-Major Funds (Continued)

Casa de Noche Buena — The Fund is used to account for services provided to
women and families with children to set and achieve their personal goals for
housing, income, employment, education, and other areas that support a
successful exit from homelessness. Casa de Noche Buena is a partnership
between the Agency and Gathering for Women, a local non-profit organization.

Shuman HeartHouse — The Fund is to account for services related to providing
temporary shelter, supportive services and a path to stable housing for women
and families with children.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables

Receivables from grantor agencies are recorded when the revenues are earned
under the accrual method of accounting and accounted for using the allowance
method.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid amounts have been allocated to expense pro-rata in the periods in which
the benefits were received.

Investments

Marketable debt and equity securities are stated at fair market value. Increases
or decreases in market value are recognized in the period in which they occur.
Certificates of deposit with an original maturity of greater than 90 days are
classified as investments.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are presented at cost. Donated assets are presented
at fair market value as of the date of donation.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful life of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 3-35 Years
Office equipment 3-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 Years
Operating and other equipment 3-8 Years
Leasehold improvements 4-5 Years
Transportation equipment 5 Years

Interfund Balances

On the Statement of Net Position, receivables and payables resulting from short-
term interfund loans are classified as "due to/from other funds".

Grants and Fees

Except for grants from Joint Powers Agency members, all government grants
and fees are applicable to specific programs and are considered restricted funds.
Program service expenses that apply to these same specific programs are
considered restricted. All expenses for administration and fund raising are
treated separately and considered unrestricted. For grant reimbursement
purposes, administrative expenses are in fact reimbursable under allocation
formulas contained in each contract. However, for financial statement purposes,
no such allocation is made.

Accrued Compensated Absences

Vacation compensation earned is recorded as an expense and liability each
month. Paid vacation for the month is recorded against the liability.

Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities and are
classified into the following net asset categories:

e Net investment in Capital Assets — Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets excludes
unspent debt proceeds.

e Restricted — Restricted components of net position are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. Restricted resources are used first when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

e Unrestricted — Unrestricted components of net position consist of amounts
that do not meet the definition of “net investment in capital assets” or
“restricted”.

Income Taxes

The Agency is a non-profit public benefit corporation that is exempt from income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the
Internal Revenue Service as other than a private foundation and qualifies for
deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). It is also exempt
from State franchise and income taxes under Section 23701(d) of the California
Revenue and Taxation Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has
been reflected in these financial statements. Income tax returns for 2016 and
forward may be audited by regulatory agencies, however, the Agency is not
aware of any such actions at this time.

Subsequent Events

The Agency's management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur
for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements from the balance
sheet date through December 9, 2021, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no
subsequent events or transactions that would have a material impact on the
current year financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2021, consist of the following:

Amount

Checking and savings $ 863,507
Investments 862,224
Total $1.725.731

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Agency’s
deposits might not be recovered. The Agency does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2021, the total carrying amount was
$863,507 with a corresponding bank balance of $952,774. The Agency’s bank
balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that an entity will not be able
to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party if the counterparty to the transaction fails. The
Agency does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2021, the Agency has investment balances of $857,083 in
Community Human Services’ Stewardship Fund with the Community Foundation
for Monterey County that is not FDIC insured, therefore, it is exposed to custodial
credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

There is a concentration of credit risk when the amount of investment in any one
entity is at least 5% of total investments except investments held in the U.S.
Government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government. As of June 30,
2021, the Agency holds its 1% investment in Fidelity mutual funds and 99% in
Community Human Services’ Stewardship Fund with the Community Foundation
for Monterey County.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Agency categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based
on the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The
fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the
hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the Agency
has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets may
include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange
market and that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter
markets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices
for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable, such
as interest rates and curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied
volatilities, and credit spreads. For financial reporting purposes, if an asset
has a specified term, a Level 2 input is required to be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best
information available under the circumstances, which might include the
Agency's own data. The Agency should adjust that data if reasonable
available information indicates that other market participants would use
different data or certain circumstances specific to the Agency are not
available to other market participants.

The Agency's fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2021:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Investment Type Fair Value Level1 Level2 Level3 Uncategorized
Fidelity Mutual Funds $ 5141 % 5141 % - $ - $ -
Community Human Services

Stewardship Fund 857,083 - - - 857,083
$ 862224% 5141% - $ - $ 857,083

All assets have been valued using a market approach, with quoted market prices.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

CONTRACTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Contracts and grants receivable are amounts due to the Agency at the end of
each fiscal year from governmental entities. Payments for grants receivable as
of June 30 will be contingent upon final approval by the funding agencies after
their review of year-end cost reports

Contracts and grants receivable at June 30, 2021, consist of the following:

Prevention
and
Treatment of
substance  Narcotic Other
Operating abuse treatment Counseling non-major
fund program program services funds Total

General Operating $ 314469 - 8 - $ - 8 2,619 $ 34,065
DAISY Program - 7,532 - - - 7,532
Genesis House

Co-ed and Perinatal

Programs - 411,793 - - - 411,793
Mental Health Services

Act Programs - - - 781 - 781
Off Main Clinic

Methadone Program - - 325,542 - - 325,542
Outpatient Drug Free - 96,331 - - - 96,331
Outpatient Mental

Health Program - - - 93,391 - 93,391
Parent Education - - - 30,401 - 30,401
Pathways to Safety - - - 31,763 - 31,763
Youth Shelter - - - - 5,477 5,477
Safe Place -

SOP and BCP - - - - 30,370 30,370
Salinas Street Outreach - - - - 15,146 15,146
Substance Use

Prevention - 43,905 - - - 43,905
Casa de Noche Buena - - - - 59,122 59,122
Contracts and grants

receivable $§ 314468 550561 § 325542 § 156,336 § 112,734 § 1,185,619
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:
Net
Balance Additions Balance
July 1, 2020 (Disposals) June 30, 2021

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 486,495 $ 1,462,500 $ 1,948,995

Construction in Progress 285,409 (240,755) 44,654

Total Capital Assets,

Not Being Depreciated 771,904 1,221,745 1,993,649

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,877,604 1,544,819 5,422,423
Office equipment 36,294 - 36,294
Transportation equipment 237,319 22,635 259,954
Furniture and fixtures 186,118 - 186,118
Leasehold improvements 141,469 1,622,615 1,764,084
Operating and other equipment 10,254 5,140 15,394
Subtotal 4,489,058 3,195,209 7,684,267
Less accumulated depreciation 2,115,689 187,314 2,303,003
Total Capital Assets,

Being Depreciated 2,373,369 3,007,895 5,381,264
Capital Assets — Net $ 3145273 $ 4229640 $ 7,374,913
Depreciation expense was charged as an operating expense to each fund as
follows:

Amount
Operating fund $ -
Prevention and treatment of
substance abuse program 88,146
Narcotic treatment program 2,221
Counseling services 8,624
Other non-major funds 152,424
TOTAL 251.41
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2021, the Agency has a note payable to Mechanics Bank for the
Sonoma Avenue property (Genesis House), interest at 6.44% per annum, due in
monthly installments of $7,173, including interest through 2024 at which time all
outstanding principal and interest are due and payable.

Outstanding balance $ 904,470
Less current portion 28,540

Total noncurrent portion of
Genesis House note payable 875,930

Total interest charged to expense during the year ended June 30, 2021,
amounted to $58,279.

On April 30, 2020, the Agency was granted a loan (PPP Loan) from Mechanics
Bank in the amount of $818,005, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) under Division A, Title | of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27,
2020.

The PPP Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 30, 2020, matures on
May 07, 2022, and bears interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly
commencing on October 07, 2021. The Note may be prepaid at any time prior to
maturity with no prepayment penalties. Funds from the PPP Loan may only be
used for payroll costs, costs used to continue group health care benefits,
mortgage payments, rent, utilities, and interest on other debt obligations. Under
the terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the PPP Loan may be forgiven if they
are used for qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act. The PPP Loan
outstanding balance of $818,005 is classified as current on the Statement of
Financial Position. Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2021, the Agency
received partial forgiveness of PPP loan, see note 11.

At June 30, 2021 the Agency has a $2,000,000 note payable to a private party
for, and secured by, the Franklin Street property (Shuman HeartHouse), interest
at 4.00% per annum, due in monthly installments of interest only at $6,667
through fiscal year 2023. The entire unpaid principal balance and any accrued
interest are due May 31, 2023.
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JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE PAYABLE (Continued)

Long-term debt repayments for years ending June 30 are approximately as
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2022 $ 846,545 $ 139,643
2023 2,030,434 135,643
2024 845,496 18,106

TOTAL $3.722.475 $ 293,392

Under the terms of the credit agreement, there are various reporting and financial
covenants. At June 30, 2021, the Agency was in compliance with the debt
covenants.

GRANTS FROM MONTEREY COUNTY

The Agency receives various grants from the Department of Social Services
(DSS) of the County of Monterey. For the specific grants listed below, certain
procedures were applied to the federal and other funding expenses reported

under these grants.
Total Federal Other

Grantor, Program and Term Amount Funding Funding

County of Monterey DSS,
Community Action Partnership-
Youth Engagement
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021 $ 100,000 $ 25,000 $ 75,000

County of Monterey DSS,
Community Action Partnership
Youth Shelter
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021 $ 30,000 $ - $ 30,000

County of Monterey DSS,
Community Action Partnership-
Casa de Noche Buena
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021 $ 100,000 $ - $ 100,000

County of Monterey DSS,
Parent Education
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ -

County of Monterey DSS,
Commercially Sexually
Exploited Children
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 $ 112,100 $ 56,050 $ 56,050
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JUNE 30, 2021

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grants

The Agency received financial assistance from federal and other government
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these
programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in
the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the
General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect
on the overall financial position of the Agency at June 30, 2021.

Litigation

The Agency is involved in litigation arising from the normal course of business.
In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation
pending is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the overall financial
position of the Agency at June 30, 2021.

Operating Leases

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Agency leased buildings for its
Outpatient Drug Treatment Programs, Off Main Clinic Methadone Program and
Family Service Center Salinas counseling office, Street Outreach Salinas
Program office, Sober Living Residential Program as well as its Administrative
office. In addition, during March 2019, the Agency leased a passenger van for
the Safe Passage Program.

The minimum future net lease commitments for the year ending June 30 are
approximately as follows:

Year Ending Lease
June 30, Payment
2022 $ 110,798
2023 97,560
2024 99,996

TOTAL $ 308,354
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

In lieu of Social Security, the Agency maintains a contributory defined
contribution pension plan for its employees. During the current year, the agency
contributed 5% of gross wages for eligible employees (those who work at least
30 hours per week on a permanent basis). Eligible employees must also
contribute a minimum of 2.5% of their gross pay, but may contribute up to
$19,500 for 2021, with an additional $5,500 if age 50 or older. Ineligible
employees must contribute 7.5% of their gross pay.

Until December 31, 2018, the Agency contracted with the Nationwide Trust
Company to purchase a group annuity contract which is individually allocated.
Under this contract, a provision is made for the accumulation of contract values
for the Agency to provide fixed annuity accumulation and benefits to the
individual participants. Actual annuity payments commencing on retirement may
be on a variable basis or on a fixed basis as determined by each individual
contract owner. The amount available in each participant’s account at the time of
his or her retirement is the total of the amounts contributed by both the employer
and employee, plus returns on the investments of those contributions.

As of January 1, 2019, the Agency contracted with Ascensus to provide
administration of the contributory defined contribution pension plan.

The Agency’s contribution to the plan amounted to $180,159 for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and is equal to 100% of the required contribution. Total payroll
was $3,756,685 and covered payroll was $3,352,646.

JOINT POWERS AGENCY MEMBERS

The Agency’s Board of Directors is made up of representatives from the following
agencies:

City of Carmel City of Del Rey Oaks

City of Marina City of Monterey

City of Pacific Grove City of Salinas

City of Seaside City of Sand City

Carmel Unified School District Pacific Grove Unified School District

Monterey County Office of Education Monterey Peninsula Community
College

Monterey Peninsula Unified School District North Monterey County Unified
School District
Santa Rita Union School District Salinas Union High School District
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On September 22, 2021, the Agency was notified by its lender, Mechanics Bank,
that the application for partial forgiveness of the PPP Loan in the amount of
$20,365 was approved by the Small Business Administration (SBA). Repayment
of the remaining PPP Loan balance of $797,640 will be in accordance with the
terms of the promissory note agreement with Mechanics Bank.
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Attachment 7
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Federal Grantor/ Federal Grant
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (USHHS)
Passed through:
County of Monterey, California
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 A-14018
Residential Program
Youth Treatment Program
Total Prevention and Treatment Clusters

Foster Care Title IV-E (CSEC) 93.658 [
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 M
Youth Engagement 93.569 [

Direct Program:
Administration for Children, Youth and Families -

Runaway and Homeless Youth 93.623 90CY699001
Education and Prevention Grants to Reduce Sexual Abuse
of Runaway, Homeless and Street Youth 93.557 90Y0228301
Total USHHS

U.S. HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (USHUD)
Direct Program:
Supportive Housing Program

Transitional Housing 14.235 ]
Passed through:
Cities of Salinas, Seaside and Monterey, California
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 ]
Total USHUD

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

1 Grant Identifying Number not available

$ 244,410
40,182

284,592

56,050
18,000
25,000

58,230

28,336

470,208

130,574

77,146

207,720

$ 677,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Counseling Services Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
MHSA Outpatient MHSA Genesis House Genesis Substance Use
Parent Mental Health  HIV / AIDS Pathways Perinatal House OTC - OTC - Sober DAISY Prevention
General Education Counseling  Counseling to Safety Residential Residential Salinas Monterey Living Program Program
REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 1,322,329 $ 164,179 $ 579,816 $ 2,117 § 169,715 § 3,639 $ 1,234,101 $ 254,138 $ 339,413 § - $ 176425 §$ 515,303
Charges and fees - - 8,812 - - - 6,667 2,525 2,420 96,219 - -
Joint Powers Agency 200,296 - - - - - - - - - - -
Private grants and contributions 1,293,176 - 25,000 - - - 320 - - - 4,000 -
Other local sources 25,184 - - - - - 4,446 - - 148,866 - -
TOTAL REVENUES 2,840,985 164,179 613,628 2,117 169,715 3,639 1,245,534 256,663 341,833 245,085 180,425 515,303
EXPENSES
Salaries 637,203 82,915 382,097 - 119,591 13,288 498,063 104,399 130,769 - 151,592 326,457
Employee benefits 159,015 17,612 89,063 (16) 22,204 2,113 101,310 25,062 23,938 - 37,262 66,254
Facilities rental 56,525 10,788 28,554 2,157 4,315 122 1,824 22,014 19,497 28,896 - -
Professional fees 44,296 925 10,759 26 955 9,159 39,497 17,714 15,928 2,617 1,168 2,494
Utilities and maintenance 25,950 21,592 31,687 1,601 6,471 5,223 107,823 12,950 11,330 91,008 3,669 10,467
Operating supplies 25,425 1,257 5,672 217 1,368 474 7,802 4,665 2,721 44 3,829 2,847
Medical supplies and -
laboratory fees - = = . = 187 4,346 15 28 - - =
Food 56 - - - - 3,254 62,135 75 80 18,504 149 192
Insurance 7,485 1,404 4,604 142 1,078 1,008 17,450 1,408 1,660 1,776 1,170 2,356
Auto and travel 317 10 477 - - 641 13,303 - - - 42 16
Telephone 9,189 3,589 8,248 615 1,230 299 5,933 2,803 2,245 6,497 1,376 -
Conferences and meetings 1,783 490 987 - 345 20 1,256 490 521 - 345 980
Advertising 9,906 3,125 4,554 - - - 5,439 815 859 - - 661
Equipment rental 5,125 777 1,864 155 311 147 2,796 1,554 1,494 - - -
Miscellaneous 851 - - - - - - - - - - -
Dues, licenses and fees 16,404 1,427 11,368 201 403 6 183 3,911 3,984 19 - -
Client costs - - - - - 19 1,087 - - 56,476 - -
Printing and publications 1,315 176 473 35 70 60 1,245 411 541 - - -
Interest - net - - - - - 2,914 55,365 - - - - -
Total before depreciation 1,000,845 146,087 580,407 5,133 158,341 38,934 926,857 198,286 215,595 205,837 200,602 412,724
Depreciation - - 8,624 - - 3,554 67,526 - - 17,066 - -
Total Expenses 1,000,845 146,087 589,031 5,133 158,341 42,488 994,383 198,286 215,595 222,903 200,602 412,724
Net income before distribution 1,840,140 18,092 24,597 (3,016) 11,374 (38,849) 251,151 58,377 126,238 22,182 (20,177) 102,579
Management distribution (1,000,828) 25,710 102,142 889 27,693 7,407 173,870 34,473 37,966 38,761 35,236 72,095
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 2,840,968 $ (7,618) $ (77,545) $ (3,905) $ (16,319) $ (46,256) $ 77,281 § 23,904 $ 88,272 $ (16,579) $ (55,413) $ 30,484

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Other Non-Major

Narcotic Runaway Casa de Salinas
Treatment Runaway Street Safe Youth Noche Heart Supervised Street Domestic
Program Basic Center  Outreach Passage Shelter Buena House Visitation Outreach Violence Total

REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 1628056 $ 74190 $ 300,835 $ 130,574 $ 80,000 $ 338,360 $ - 8 4335 $ 310,236 $ 6,819 § 7,634,580
Charges and fees 127,512 - - 3,518 - - 15,194 13,939 - 26,088 302,894
Joint Powers Agency - - - - - - - - - - 200,296
Private grants and contributions 7,465 19,025 39,428 - 2,000 76,552 - - - - 1,466,966
Other local sources - - 12,710 - - 1,905 - - - - 193,111

TOTAL REVENUES 1,763,033 93,215 352,973 134,092 82,000 416,817 15,194 18,274 310,236 32,907 . 9,797,847
EXPENSES
Salaries 575,426 15,579 138,948 111,275 78,200 164,738 - 9,813 202,160 14,172 3,756,685
Employee benefits 159,672 1,418 35,102 26,906 5,794 26,544 - 1,086 29,041 3,049 832,429
Facilities rental 69,720 - 132 80 - 3,966 - - 12,321 - 260,911
Professional fees 77,139 314 2,547 1,319 697 22,763 - 291 1,949 143 252,700
Utilities and maintenance 121,646 3,279 28,751 16,577 12,835 © 38,859 51 3,378 7,968 2,885 566,000
Operating supplies 28,397 649 26,851 3,663 ,5,194 50,245 - 2,234 3,271 813 177,638
Medical supplies and

laboratory fees 75,038 - - - - 4,465 - - - - 84,079

Food 417 - 8,627 3,143 414 18,953 - - 1,684 - 117,683
Insurance 6,874 747 4,605 3,582 1,876 4,730 183 256 5,014 338 69,746
Auto and travel 61 - 5,201 12,104 - 2,565 - 702 | 5,200 10 40,649
Telephone 8,572 668 5,645 5,168 1,380 2,141 - 954 5,939 - 72,491
Conferences and meetings 2,004 - 29,902 425 70 424 - 145 690 - 40,877
Advertising 4,231 20 620 5,301 2,846 3,559 - 244 597 2,359 45,136
Equipment rental 3,261 257 990 - 554 1,178 - - 2,680 - 23,143
Miscellaneous - - - - - - - - - - 851
Dues, licenses and fees 34,073 - 1,434 30 - 878 - - 6 298 74,625
Client costs - 130 3,087 747 380 1,775 - - 1,721 - 65,422
Printing and publications 3,907 35 358 - 29 1,298 - - 542 - 10,495
Interest - net - - - - - - - - - - 58,279

Total before depreciation 1,170,438 23,096 292,800 190,320 110,269 349,081 234 19,103 280,783 24,067 6,549,839
Depreciation 2,221 4,140 23,422 12,675 12,421 84,926 4,271 - 10,569 - 251,415

Total Expenses 1,172,659 27,236 316,222 202,995 122,690 434,007 4,505 19,103 291,352 24,067 6,801,254
Net income before distribution 590,374 65,979 36,751 (68,903) (40,690) (17,190) 10,689 (829) 18,884 8,840 2,996,593
Management distribution 204,433 4,879 54,486 35,508 21,141 66,090 4 3,242 50,633 4,170 -
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 385941 § 61,100 $ (17,735) $ (104,411) $ (61,831) $ (83,280) $ 10,685 $ (4,071) $ (31,749) $ 4670 $ 2,996,593

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - AGENCY WIDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Original and Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 6,686,695 § 7,634,580 $ 947,885
Charges and fees 287,244 302,894 15,650
Total operating revenues 6,973,939 7,937,474 963,535
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 4,013,130 3,756,685 256,445
Employee benefits 936,529 832,429 104,100
Facilities rental, utilities and maintenance 735,693 826,911 (91,218)
Professional fees 289,524 252,700 36,824
Operating supplies 166,707 177,638 (10,931)
Medical supplies and laboratory fees 121,884 84,079 37,805
Food and client costs 237,327 183,105 54,222
Insurance 79,704 69,746 9,958
Auto and travel 58,794 40,649 18,145
Telephone 80,688 72,491 8,197
Conferences and meetings 39,981 40,877 (896)
Advertising 51,616 55,631 (4,015)
Equipment rental 47,673 23,143 24,530
Miscellaneous 950 851 99
Dues, licenses and fees 63,579 74,625 (11,046)
Depreciation 256,170 251,415 4,755
Total Operating Expenses 7,179,949 6,742,975 436,974
OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) (206,010) 1,194,499 1,400,509
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Joint Powers Agency support 192,450 200,296 7,846
Private grants and contributions 76,416 1,466,966 1,390,550
Other local sources 2,004 193,111 191,107
Interest Expense (64,860) (58,279) 6,581
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 206,010 1,802,094 1,596,084
CHANGES IN NET POSITION $ - 2,996,593 $ 2,996,593
NET POSITION,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,148,728
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 6,145,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
42



COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2021

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the
federal grant activity of the Agency and is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the financial statements. The Agency has not elected to use the ten percent
de minimis cost rate as covered in Section 200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs of the
Uniform Guidance.

Combining Schedule of Functional Revenues and Expenses

This schedule provides the Agency the comparison of revenues and expenses by
each program function.

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses- Budget to Actual- Agency Wide

This schedule provides the Agency the comparison of actual and planned
revenues and expenses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Community Human Services
Monterey, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of each major enterprise fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Community Human Services, a Joint Powers Agency of
California Local governments, (Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Community Human Services’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 9, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Agency'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Agency's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Agency's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

MI Kaoa yoe q /07&, FA”

Salinas, California
December 9, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Human Services
Monterey, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major enterprise fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Community Human Services, a Joint
Powers Authority of California local governments, (Agency) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
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on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of each enterprise major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Community Human Services, as of June 30,
2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the management's discussion and analysis on pages 5-12 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information such as the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
(SEFA), as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the other supplementary information, such as
the Combining Schedule of Functional Revenues and Expenses and budgetary
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comparison information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The SEFA, the Combining Schedule of Functional Revenues and Expenses and the
budgetary comparison information are the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the SEFA, the Combining Schedule of Functional
Revenues and Expenses and the budgetary comparison information are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 30, 2020, on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Salinas, California
October 30, 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

This section of Community Human Services’ (Agency) annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the Agency’s financial performance during the year
ended on June 30, 2020. Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes and currently known
facts, please read it in conjunction with the Agency’s basic financial statements, which
begin on page 14. Comparisons to and analysis of the prior year are incorporated
where appropriate.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The Agency’s net position increased by $778,411 (or 32.84%) during 2020.
Since the Agency engages only in business type activities, the increase is all in
the category of business-type net position. Net position was $3,148,728 and
$2,370,317 for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

¢ The Agency’s return on total ending net position was 24.72%.

o Total cost of all the Agency’s programs was $6,392,509 and $6,575,448 for 2020
and 2019, respectively.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements, an Independent Auditors’ Report thereon and this Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis. Readers of these financial statements are encouraged to
consider the report as a whole to obtain a complete understanding of the Agency’s
financial condition.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is a report of the Agency’s assets, liabilities and net
position. Assets and liabilities are reported at book value on an accrual basis as of the
statement date. Assets and liabilities have been segregated between current (expected
to be liquidated or paid within one year) and noncurrent. Net Position is reported in
major categories reflecting any restrictions thereon.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the
Agency'’s revenue earned and expenses incurred during the period on an accrual basis.
The Statement has been segregated into operating and nonoperating sections.



COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the sources and uses of cash and is segregated
into operating, capital and related financing, noncapital financing and investing
activities. The direct method of cash flows reporting has been used and the indirect
method of calculating cash provided (used) by operations is also presented.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide more detailed information about the Agency's
most significant funds. The Agency consists of exclusively Enterprise Funds, but the
focus now is on Major Funds, rather than fund types. In order to be selected as a major
fund, the fund’'s assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses should be at least 10% or
more of the fund type’s total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses and at least 5% or
more of the Agency's total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses. Since the Agency
has only one fund type, the 10% criteria is used to determine major funds. The
Enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting utilized by private sector
accounting.

THE AGENCY’S FUNDS

Business Type Funds

Operating Fund — This is the Agency’s main operating fund.

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Program Fund — Under the
Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Fund, the Agency provides residential
drug treatment, outpatient drug treatment, a supported sober living environment and a
youth substance abuse education and intervention program. The Fund consists of
seven programs:

Genesis House Perinatal Program

Genesis House Co-Ed Program

Sober Living

Drug and Alcohol Intervention Services for Youth (DAISY) Program
Outpatient Drug Treatment Centers in Salinas and Monterey
Substance Use Prevention Program

Narcotic Treatment Program Fund — Under the Narcotic Treatment Program Fund,
the Agency operates Off Main Clinic, a medication-assisted treatment program. The
Clinic offers closely monitored methadone dispensing and substance abuse counseling
to Medi-Cal and private pay patients.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

THE AGENCY’S FUNDS (Continued)

Business Type Funds (Continued)

Counseling Services — Under the Counseling Services Fund, the Agency provides
outpatient mental health counseling, parent education and family safety-net services.
The Fund consists of eight programs operating out of the Family Service Centers in
Salinas and Seaside:

Pathways to Safety Program

Access to Treatment Outpatient Mental Health Program

Counseling and Therapy Services (CATS) Program for individuals with HIV/AIDS
Self-Referred Mental Health Counseling Program

Parent Education Program

Micro Innovation

Other Non-Major Funds — In addition to the major funds above, the Agency also
maintains the following non-major funds:

Basic Center Program for runaway and homeless youth

Street Outreach Program for runaway and homeless youth

Safe Passage Program for homeless youth ages 18 — 21

Domestic Violence/Anger Management Program

Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program

SuperKids/SuperTeens school-based counseling program

Permanent Youth Shelter, an overnight shelter in downtown Monterey for homeless
youth

Salinas Street Outreach for runaway and homeless youth

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

A comparative summary of the Agency’s Statement of Net Position as of June 30, which
generally reflects its financial condition, is as follows:

2020 2019 Changes % Changes

Assets
Current assets $ 9572616 $ 7,589,657 $ 1,982,959 26.13%
Capital and other assets 3,145,273 2,890,736 254 537 8.81%
Total Assets 12,717,889 10,480,393 2,237,496 21.35%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Statement of Net Position (Continued)

2020 2019 Changes % Changes
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 8205415 $ 7,176,956 $ 1,028,459 14.33%
Long-term obligations 1,363,746 933,120 430,626 46.15%
Total Liabilities 9,569,161 8,110,076 1,459,085 17.99%
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets 2,213,006 1,932,525 280,481 14.51%
Restricted 2,012,906 1,747,778 265,128 15.17%
Unrestricted (1.077,184) (1,309,986) 232,802 17.77%
Total Net Position $ 3148728 $ 2370317 $ 778,411 32.84%

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position

Current year's net position increased by $778,411 from the prior year. The current year
increase was related primarily to increases in public grants and contracts offset by
decreases in salaries and benefits.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

A comparative summary of the Agency’'s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, which generally reflects its results of operations as of June 30,
is as follows:

2020 2019 Changes _% Changes
Revenues
Program revenues:
Public grants and contracts $ 6,314,690 $ 5,625,346 $ 689,344 12.25%
Charges and fees 369,208 332,543 36,665 11.03%
Private grants and
contributions 297,365 192,392 104,973 54.56%
Joint Powers Agency
support 173,950 156,800 17,150 10.94%
Other revenue 15,707 83,937 (68,230) (81.29%)
Total Revenues 7,170,920 6,391,018 779,902 12.20%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Continued)

2020 2019 Changes % Changes
Expenses
General $ 955051 $ 1,041,663 $ (86,612) (8.31%)
Off Main Clinic Methadone
Program 1,128,917 1,080,141 48,776 4.52%
Genesis House Co-Ed Program 1,126,010 1,001,733 124,277 12.41%
Access to Treatment Outpatient
Mental Health Program 672,498 988,115 (315,617) (31.94%)
Genesis House Perinatal Program 48,063 59,428 (11,365) (19.12%)
Basic Center Program for
Runaway and Homeless Youth 186,040 215,077 (29,037) (13.50%)
Family to Family Program - 10,050 (10,050) (100.00%)
Street Outreach Program for
Runaway and Homeless Youth 241,096 244,170 (3,074) (1.26%)
Safe Passage Program 175,681 205,141 (29,460) (14.36%)
Mental Health Services
Act Programs (PE, CATS A&B) 173,730 290,394 (116,664) (40.17%)
DAISY Program 159,949 133,992 25,957 19.37%
Pathways to Safety Program 164,553 168,671 (4,118) (2.44%)
Outpatient Drug
Treatment Centers 460,185 522,794 (62,609) (11.98%)
Permanent Youth Shelter 50,970 62,327 (11,357) (18.22%)
Self-Referred Mental Health
Counseling Program 27,125 33,421 (6,296) (18.84%)
Supervised Visitation and
Exchange Program 26,834 40,764 (13,930) (34.17%)
Domestic Violence/Anger
Management Program 39,902 51,312 (11,410) (22.24%)
Sober Living 76,988 60,603 16,385 27.04%
SuperKids/Super Teens
Program 6,828 35,935 (29,107) (81.00%)
Family Service Center -
DSS Counseling - 762 (762) (100.00%)
Substance Use Prevention
Program 408,773 328,955 79,818 24.26%
Micro Innovation 20,362 - 20,362 100.00%
Salinas Street Outreach 242,954 - 242954 100.00%
Total Expenses 6.392,509 6,575,448 (182,939) (2.78%)
Change in
Net Position $§ 778411 $ (184,430) $  962.841 522.06%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position

Current year revenue increased by $779,902 over the prior year due to increases in
public grants and contracts, and increases in private grants and contributions.

Note that the increase in net position also includes:

1) Income of $404,538 from various capital grants which will purchase capital items
to be depreciated over future years

2) An estimated contract cost settlement payment of $347,522 due to Monterey
County Behavioral Health for FY 2019-20

Current year expenses decreased by $182,939 due primarily to a $304,194 decrease in
salaries and benefits, mainly due to open positions. This was offset by a $156,737
increase in facilities rental, utilities and maintenance expenses. Reasons for increased
costs include depreciation on new capital improvements and vehicle purchases,
increased occupancy costs, additional Employment Practices Liability insurance, and
the purchase of Narcan for County-wide distribution for the prevention of deaths due to
opioid overdose.

The second year of operating Genesis House under the new Medi-Cal waiver was
disappointing financially. The Medi-Cal reimbursement rates that the County negotiated
with the State did not cover expenses, and the board and care rate set by the Monterey
County Behavioral Health Department also did not cover expenses. Despite several
requests and pressure put on the County by the Behavioral Health Contractors’
Association, the reimbursement rates are still inadequate in FY 2020-21, with the
exception of increased rates for Intensive Outpatient Services. The Contractors’
Association will continue to press the issue with Behavioral Health.

The Access to Mental Health Services contract was inadequate to meet the public’'s
mental health needs. See last year's statement.

Elm House was certified for Medi-Cal outpatient treatment, but because of lower than
expected demand for women’s residential services and low Medi-Cal reimbursement
rates, we pivoted and turned Elm House back into a sober living environment. The
certified Outpatient Treatment Centers (OTCs) were licensed by the State Department
of Health Care Services, which will allow us to bill private insurance once the programs
are enrolled on insurance panels. Our efforts to do so for the OTCs, as well as Genesis
House and the outpatient mental health programs were unsuccessful due to
nonperformance by a third-party contractor. We did receive a full refund.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2020, the Agency had $3,145,273 invested in a variety of capital assets
as reflected in the following schedule, which represents a net increase, including
additions, deductions and depreciation, of 8.81% or $254,537 from the prior year.

2020 2019 Changes % Changes
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $ 486,495 § 486,495 § - 0.00%
Construction in Progress 285,409 - 285,409 100.00%
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 771904 $ 486,495 $ 285,409 58.67%
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,877,604 3,824,182 53,422 1.40%
Office equipment 36,294 302,670 (266,376) (88.01%)
Transportation Equipment 237,319 258,933 (21,614) (8.35%)
Furniture and fixtures 186,118 186,118 - 0.00%
Leasehold Improvements 141,469 141,469 - 0.00%
Operating and Other equipment 10,254 80,188 (69,934) (87.21%)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 4,489,058 4,793,560 (304,502) (6.35%)
Less accumulated depreciation 2,115,689 2,389,319 (273,630) (11.45%)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated — net 2,373,369 2,404,241 (30,872) (1.28%)
Total Capital Assets $3,145,273 $2,890.736 $ 254,537 8.81%

Debt Outstanding

Long-term debt obligations at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consist of the following:

2020 2019 Changes % Changes
Note payable to Mechanics Bank
Collateralized by Sonoma
Avenue property $ 932267 $ 958,211 $ (25,944) (2.71%)
PPP Loan 818,005 - 818,005 100.00%
Less current portion 386,526 25,091 361,435 1,440.50%
Total Long-Term Debt $1363,746 $ 933,120 $ 430,626 46.15%
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

Net increase to long-term debt of $430,626 is a result of acquiring a Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) Loan during April for $818,005 less $386,526 which is the
current portions of the PPP Loan and note payable totaling $359,761 and 26,765
respectively.

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS

The Monterey County Contractors’ Association will continue to press for fairer
reimbursement rates from the Behavioral Health Department. If successful, we will get
closer to full or complete reimbursement for services rendered to the County.

The conversion of EIm House to sober living as well as opening another sober living
environment, Sonoma House, will also allow us support our graduates’ ongoing
recovery, collect rents, and provide Medi-Cal billable recovery support services, thereby
maximizing our income.

Private insurance continues to be a potential source of revenue. We will continue to
seek approvals from insurance companies to bill for behavioral health services.

We were awarded a total of $2,444,989 in Homeless Emergency Assistance Program
(HEAP) funding from the State via the local administrator of the Monterey-San Benito
Counties’ Continuum of Care, the Coalition of Homeless Services Providers. The funds,
to be distributed over a two year period, are for the rehabilitation of a modular building in
Seaside for use as a homeless shelter for women and families with children
($1,287,658); a street outreach program for unaccompanied homeless youth in the
Salinas Valley ($857,331); and Casa de Noche Buena shelter operations ($300,000).

HEAP funding of $300,000 to operate the Peninsula shelter Casa de Noche Buena will
partially fund shelter operations in FY 2020-21. The shelter is a partnership between
CHS and Gathering for Women, a nonprofit agency located in Monterey, CA that serves
homeless women. A joint fund development team will lead efforts to raise money from
the State, the County, Monterey Peninsula cities, public grants and private
grants/donations for ongoing shelter operations. A special purpose fund (The Casa
Shelter Fund) was established with the Community Foundation for Monterey County to
facilitate private philanthropy.

In June 2020, CHS was awarded a $600,000 Homeless Housing, Assistance and
Prevention (HHAP) Program grant for Casa de Noche Buena shelter operations and a
$228,145 HHAP grant for street outreach services homeless youth in Salinas Valley and
on the Monterey Peninsula. HHAP funding must be fully expended by June 30, 2025.
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FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS (Continued)

CHS is prepared to apply for more homeless funding with at least one new program in
mind — a drop-in center for unaccompanied homeless youth in Salinas. The next known
source of funding - Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program —
Round 2, will include a set-aside for unaccompanied homeless youth. It will be awarded
in the spring of 2021.

The agency’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic and shelter-in-place (SIP) order was
swift. Strict cleaning and disinfecting procedures were immediately put into place.
Employees and clients were provided with hand sanitizer. Hand washing stations were
installed at Off Main Clinic and Safe Place for the clients’ use. Social distancing and
mask wearing were required. Clients and staff were provided with COVID-19
educational materials. Policies and procedures were developed to address protocols
for news admissions, quarantining and isolation in the residential programs. All
essential services — drug treatment, medication-assisted treatment, mental health
counseling and homeless outreach services — continued to be provided without
interruption either in person, via telehealth, or through a combination of the two. Non-
essential services such as parenting education and family support services continued
uninterrupted via telehealth. Only supervised visitations and domestic violence groups
were temporarily suspended until the SIP order was modified and have since resumed
on a size-limited basis. We received a Payroll Protection Program loan which provided
economic relief to those programs that experienced loss of income and allowed us to
maintain staff positions. We also received some COVID relief grant funding to cover
unbudgeted costs related to Personal Protective Equipment and supplies. We
anticipate that these activities and costs will be ongoing in future periods and have
budgeted for them in FY 2020-21.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
The financial report has been designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s
accounting for anyone interested in its finances. Questions concerning any of the

information should be addressed to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer,
Community Human Services, P.O. Box 3076, Monterey, California 93942.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020
ASSETS
Prevention and
Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 794878 § - $ -
Contracts and grants receivable - Note 4 182,268 306,762 335,109
Prepaid expenses 72,787 - -
Investments 437,606 - -
Due from other funds 4,859,170 134,034 2,010,342
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,346,709 440,796 2,345,451
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net - Note 5 - 1,947,984 5,921
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,346,709 $ 2,388,780 $ 2,351,372
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 117820 $ - $ -
Accrued retirement payable 31,121 - -
Worker's compensation payable 6,971 - -
Unearned revenue 9,306 - -
Due to other funds - 3,143,146 77,074
Current portion of notes payable - Note 6 359,761 26,765 -
Accrued vacation payable 166,827 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 691,806 3,169,911 77,074
NOTES PAYABLE - net of current portion - Note 6 458,244 905,502 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,150,050 4,075,413 77,074
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets - 1,015,717 5,921
Restricted for narcotic prevention - - 2,012,906
Unrestricted 5,196,659 (2,702,350) 255,471
TOTAL NET POSITION 5,196,659 (1,686,633) 2,274,298
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 6,346,709 § 2,388,780 $ 2,351,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020
ASSETS
Other
Counseling Non-major
Services Funds Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ - $ 794,878
Contracts and grants receivable - Note 4 111,162 102,383 1,037,684
Prepaid expenses - - 72,787
Investments - - 437,606
Due from other funds 10,876 215,239 7,229,661
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 122,038 317,622 9,572,616
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net - Note 5 252,315 939,053 3,145,273
TOTAL ASSETS $ 374353 $ 1,256,675 § 12,717,889
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 117,820
Accrued retirement payable - - 31,121
Worker's compensation payable - - 6,971
Unearned revenue - 257,183 266,489
Due to other funds 2,359,983 1,649,458 7,229,661
Current portion of notes payable - Note 6 - - 386,526
Accrued vacation payable - - 166,827
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,359,983 1,906,641 8,205,415
NOTES PAYABLE - net of current portion - Note 6 - - 1,363,746
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,359,983 1,906,641 9,569,161
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 252,315 939,053 2,213,006
Restricted for narcotic prevention - - 2,012,906
Unrestricted (2,237,945) (1,589,019) (1,077,184)
TOTAL NET POSITION (1,985,630) (649,966) 3,148,728
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 374,353 § 1,256,675 $ 12,717,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Prevention and

Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Treatment
Fund Abuse Program Program
OPERATING REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 325,032 $ 2,587,635 $ 1,689,570
Charges and fees - 88,170 129,640
Total Operating Revenues 325,032 2,675,805 1,719,210
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 597,843 1,213,087 545,601
Employee benefits 129,643 311,327 157,196
Facilities rental 58,913 73,578 67,662
Professional fees 25,518 65,759 74,395
Utilities and maintenance 27,548 211,076 107,443
Operating supplies 36,092 41,919 22,530
Medical supplies and laboratory fees - 7,242 75,668
Food 6,012 101,884 124
Insurance 7,316 29,223 8,064
Auto and travel 1,668 14,166 1,566
Telephone 10,318 19,761 8,158
Conferences and meetings 5,554 2,389 156
Advertising 26,152 2,157 1,632
Equipment rental 5,153 6,897 3,261
Miscellaneous 1,082 53 -
Dues, licenses and fees 8,036 16,969 43,042
Client costs - 4,462 2,346
Printing and publications 6,876 3,262 1,948
Depreciation 1,327 94,624 2,762
Total Operating Expenses 955,051 2,219,835 1,123,554
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (630,019) 455,970 595,656
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Joint Powers Agency support 173,950 - -
Private grants and contributions 204,127 12,049 6,771
Other local sources 14,863 94 -
Interest expense - (60,133) (5,363)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 392,940 (47,990) 1,408
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (237,079) 407,980 597,064
Transfers from (to) other funds (955,061) 401,287 198,126
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 717,982 6,693 398,938
NET POSITION,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,478,677 (1,693,326) 1,875,360
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 5,196,659 $ (1,686,633) $ 2,274,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Other
Counseling Non-Major
Services Funds Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Public grants and contracts $ 772,469 $ 1,039,984 § 6,314,690
Charges and fees 83,745 67,653 369,208
Total Operating Revenues 856,214 1,107,637 6,683,898
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 655,830 543,359 3,555,720
Employee benefits 182,095 116,570 896,831
Facilities rental 42,402 15,013 257,568
Professional fees 25,086 13,867 204,625
Utilities and maintenance 74,251 77,830 498,148
Operating supplies 17,919 33,163 151,623
Medical supplies and laboratory fees - - 82,910
Food 1,363 15,938 125,321
Insurance 9,133 15,439 69,175
Auto and travel 6,089 22,496 45,985
Telephone 14,728 19,228 72,193
Conferences and meetings 7,559 5,836 21,494
Advertising 4,283 12,676 46,900
Equipment rental 3,096 3,610 22,017
Miscellaneous - - 1,135
Dues, licenses and fees 1,996 10,071 80,114
Client costs 331 6,584 13,723
Printing and publications 1,308 4,335 17,729
Depreciation 10,799 54,290 163,802
Total Operating Expenses 1,058,268 970,305 6,327,013
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (202,054) 137,332 356,885
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Joint Powers Agency support - - 173,950
Private grants and contributions 28,431 45,987 297,365
Other local sources - 750 15,707
Interest expense - - (65,496)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 28,431 46,737 421,526
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (173,623) 184,069 778,411
Transfers from (to) other funds 186,797 168,851 -
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (360,420) 15,218 778,411
NET POSITION, ,
BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,625,210) (665,184) 2,370,317
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ (1,985630) $ (649,966) $ 3,148,728

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Prevention and

Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from clients $ - $ 88,170 $ 129,640
Cash receipts from public contracts 325,032 2,616,767 1,589,527
Cash payments to suppliers and employees (931,310) (2,125,211) (1,120,792)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (606,278) 579,726 598,375
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on debt - (60,133) (5,363)
Proceeds from long-term debt 818,005 - -
Payments on long-term debt - (25,944) -
Cash payments for acquisiton of capital assets (132,930) - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 685,075 (86,077) (5,363)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Gain on sale of equipment - - -
Investment earnings 347 - -
Investment purchases (400,355) - -
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES (400,008) - -
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net payments on line of credit (234,718) - -
Joint Powers Agency support 173,950 - -
Cash receipts from private grants and contributions 10,786 12,049 6,771
Other local sources 21,487 94 -
Cash receipts from (paid to) other funds 1,092,017 (505,792) (599,783)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,063,522 (493,649) (593,012)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 742,311 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 52,567 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 794,878 § - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Other
Counseling Non-major
Services Funds Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from clients $ 83,745 § 67,653 $ 369,208
Cash receipts from public contracts 756,719 994,867 6,282,912
Cash payments to suppliers and employees (1,047,469) (916,015) (6,140,797)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (207,005) 146,505 511,323
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on debt - - (65,496)
Proceeds from long-term debt - - 818,005
Payments on long-term debt - - (25,944)
Cash payments for acquisiton of capital assets - (285,409) (418,339)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (285,409) 308,226
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Gain on sale of equipment - 750 750
Investment earnings - - 347
Investment purchases - - (400,355)
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES - 750 (399,258)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net payments on line of credit - - (234,718)
Joint Powers Agency support - - 173,950
Cash receipts from private grants and contributions 28,431 303,170 361,207
Other local sources - - 21,581
Cash receipts from (paid to) other funds 178,574 (165,016) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 207,005 138,154 322,020
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - - 742,311
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR - - 52,567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ 794,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Prevention and
Treatment of Narcotic
Operating Substance Abuse Treatment
Fund Program Program
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (630,019) $ 455970 $ 595,656
Adjustments to reconcile change in
net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,327 94,624 2,762
Change in allowance for uncollectible receivables - - -
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Contracts and grants receivable - 29,132 (43)
Prepaid expenses (1,377) - -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 26,227 - -
Accrued retirement payable (4,146) - -
Accrued vacation payable 1,710 - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (606,278) $ 579,726 $ 598,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Other
Counseling Non-major
Services Funds Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (202,054 $ 137332 $ 356,885
Adjustments to reconcile change in
net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 10,799 54,290 163,802
Change in allowance for uncollectible receivables (56,301) - (56,301)
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Contracts and grants receivable 40,551 (45,117) 24,523
Prepaid expenses - - (1,377)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable - - 26,227
Accrued retirement payable - - (4,146)
Accrued vacation payable - - 1,710
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (207,005) $ 146505 511,323

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Organization and Description

Community Human Services (Agency) is a tax exempt, 501(c)(3) Joint Powers
Authority. The Board of Directors is made up of appointed representatives from
local governmental entities comprising the Joint Powers Authority.

The Agency, through contracts with government agencies, private grants and
donations, and client charges and fees, provides a variety of services including
outpatient counseling and therapy for people with drug or alcohol problems, an
in-house recovery center for addicted persons, and other counseling and
educational programs.

Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the Agency are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and in
compliance with requirements set by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), include funds that are controlled by or dependent on the Agency.
Control or dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption,
designation of management, and ability to significantly influence operations. All
known activities of the Agency have been included in these financial statements.
The Agency does not have component units.

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Enterprise Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an
enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Agency’s enterprise funds are service charges to clients, and contract fees
from other government agencies.

23
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of operating the primary
activities of funds, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

The financial statements are accounted for using the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows.

Description of Funds

The accounts of the Agency are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenses. Resources are allocated
to and accounted for in proprietary funds based upon the purposes for which
spending activities are controlled.

Major Funds

Operating Fund - The Fund is the chief operating fund for the Agency. It is used
to account for the ordinary operations of the Agency. All transactions except
those accounted for in another fund are accounted for in this fund.

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Program - The Fund is used
to account separately for residential and outpatient drug treatment and recovery
options. These services include Genesis House Perinatal Program, Genesis
House Co-Ed Program, Sober Living environment, Outpatient Treatment Centers
(OTC), DAISY substance abuse program for youth and the Substance Use
Prevention Program in the Salinas Union High School District.

Narcotic Treatment Program - The Fund is used to account separately for

substance abuse counseling and methadone maintenance services at Off Main
Clinic.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Counseling Services - The Fund is used to account separately for services and
education provided to individuals and families. These services include the
Parent Education Program, Pathways to Safety, Micro Innovation and outpatient
mental health counseling at the Family Service Centers.

Non-Major Funds

Basic Center Program - The Fund is used to account for the Basic Center
Program at Safe Place, which provides runaway and homeless youth with
individual and group counseling, family counseling, family reunification or
alternate placement, temporary shelter, substance abuse education and
aftercare services.

Street Outreach Program - The Fund is used to account for the Street Outreach
Program at Safe Place, which provides runaway and homeless youth with street
outreach, informal counseling, education about sexual and personal safety,
survival aid such as food, clothing and personal care products and information
and referral to other services.

Safe Passage Program - The Fund is used to account for transitional housing
and supportive services for homeless youth ages 18-21. Services include
counseling, case management, life skills education and linkages to education,
employment and permanent housing.

SuperKids/SuperTeens Program - The Fund is used to account for school-
based counseling programs for youth in participating middle and high schools.

Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program - The Fund is used to account
for monitored visits between children and their non-custodial parents in a safe,
family-like environment.

Domestic Violence/Anger Management Program - The Fund is used to
account for Probation-certified psycho-educational counseling groups for
domestic violence offenders and those seeking assistance with anger issues.

Permanent Youth Shelter Program - The Fund is used to account for an
overnight shelter in downtown Monterey for homeless youth.

Salinas Street Outreach — The Fund is used to account for the street outreach
program in Salinas and the Salinas Valley, which provides runaway and
homeless youth with individual and group counseling, family counseling, family
reunification or alternate placement, temporary shelter, substance abuse
education and aftercare services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables

Receivables from grantor agencies are recorded when the revenues are earned
under the accrual method of accounting and accounted for using the allowance
method.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid amounts have been allocated to expense pro-rata in the periods in which
the benefits were received.

Investments

Marketable debt and equity securities are stated at fair market value. Increases
or decreases in market value are recognized in the period in which they occur.
Certificates of deposit with an original maturity of greater than 90 days are
classified as investments.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are presented at cost. Donated assets are presented
at fair market value as of the date of donation.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful life of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 3-35 Years
Office equipment 3-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 Years
Operating and other equipment 3-8 Years
Leasehold improvements 4-5 Years
Transportation equipment 5 Years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Interfund Balances

On the Statement of Net Position, receivables and payables resulting from short-
term interfund loans are classified as "due to/from other funds".

Grants and Fees

Except for grants from Joint Powers Agency members, all government grants
and fees are applicable to specific programs and are considered restricted funds.
Program service expenses that apply to these same specific programs are
considered restricted. All expenses for administration and fund raising are
treated separately and considered unrestricted. For grant reimbursement
purposes, administrative expenses are in fact reimbursable under allocation
formulas contained in each contract. However, for financial statement purposes,
no such allocation is made.

Accrued Compensated Absences

Vacation compensation earned is recorded as an expense and liability each
month. Paid vacation for the month is recorded against the liability.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities and are
classified into the following net asset categories:

e Net investment in Capital Assets — Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets excludes
unspent debt proceeds.
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JUNE 30, 2020

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Net Position (Continued)

¢ Restricted — Restricted components of net position are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. Restricted resources are used first when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

¢ Unrestricted — Unrestricted components of net position consist of amounts
that do not meet the definition of “net investment in capital assets” or
“restricted”.

Income Taxes

The Agency is a non-profit public benefit corporation that is exempt from income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the
Internal Revenue Service as other than a private foundation and qualifies for
deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). It is also exempt
from State franchise and income taxes under Section 23701(d) of the California
Revenue and Taxation Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has
been reflected in these financial statements. Income tax returns for 2015 and
forward may be audited by regulatory agencies, however, the Agency is not
aware of any such actions at this time.

New Accounting Pronouncement

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The Agency adopted Statement No. 95 - “Postponement of
the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance”. The requirements of this
Statement are effective immediately.

Subsequent Events

The Agency's management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur
for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements from the balance
sheet date through October 30, 2020, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no
subsequent events or transactions that would have a material impact on the
current year financial statements.
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JUNE 30, 2020

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2020, consist of the following:

Amount

Checking and savings $ 792,830
Investments 437,606
TOTAL 1,230,436

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Agency’s
deposits might not be recovered. The Agency does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2020, the total carrying amount was
$792,830 with a corresponding bank balance of $1,271,517. The Agency’s bank
balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that an entity will not be able
to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party if the counterparty to the transaction fails. The
Agency does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2020, the Agency has investment balances of $36,857 in
Community Human Services’ Stewardship Fund that is not FDIC insured,
therefore, were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

There is a concentration of credit risk when the amount of investment in any one
entity is at least 5% of total investments except investments held in the U.S.
Government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government. As of June 30,
2020, the Agency holds its 92% investment in Fidelity mutual funds and 8% in
Community Human Services’ Stewardship Fund.
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JUNE 30, 2020

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Agency categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based
on the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The
fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the
hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the Agency
has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets may
include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange
market and that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter
markets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices
for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable, such
as interest rates and curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied
volatilities, and credit spreads. For financial reporting purposes, if an asset
has a specified term, a Level 2 input is required to be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best
information available under the circumstances, which might include the
Agency's own data. The Agency should adjust that data if reasonable
available information indicates that other market participants would use
different data or certain circumstances specific to the Agency are not
available to other market participants.

The Agency's fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2020:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Investment Type Fair Value Level1 Level2 Level3 Uncategorized
Fidelity Mutual Funds $ 400,749 $400,7498% - $ - § -
Community Human Services

Stewardship Fund 36,857 - - - 36,857
437606 $400,749% - $ - § 36,857

All assets have been valued using a market approach, with quoted market prices.

30



COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES Attachment 7
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JUNE 30, 2020

CONTRACTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Contracts and grants receivable are amounts due to the Agency at the end of
each fiscal year from governmental entities. Payments for grants receivable as
of June 30 will be contingent upon final approval by the funding agencies after
their review of year-end cost reports

Contracts and grants receivable at June 30, 2020, consist of the following:

Prevention
and
Treatment of
substance Narcotic Other
Operating abuse treatment Counseling non-major
fund program program services funds Total

General Operating $ 182,268 $ - $ - $ - $ - $182,268
DAISY Program - 4,128 - - - 4,128
Genesis House

Co-ed and Perinatal

Programs - 141,174 - - - 141,174
Mental Health Services

Act Programs - - - 1,637 - 1,637
Off Main Clinic

Methadone Program - - 335,109 - - 335,109
Outpatient Drug Free - 115,042 - - - 115,042
Outpatient Mental

Health Program - - - 47,223 - 47,223
Safe Passage

Program - - - - 8,397 8,397
Salinas Street Outreach - - - - 53,643 53,643
Safe Place — SOP and BCP - - - - 35,358 35,358
Permanent Shelter - - - - 4,985 4,985
Substance Use

Prevention - 46,418 - - - 46,418
Parent Education - - - 18,834 - 18,834
Pathways to Safety - - - 43,468 - 43,468
Contracts and grants

receivable $ 182268 $ 306.762 $ 335,109 § 111,162 $ 102,383 $1,037,684
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets,
Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Office equipment
Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Operating and other equipment

Subtotal
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated

Capital Assets — Net

Attachment 7

Net

Balance Additions Balance
July 1, 2019 (Disposals) June 30, 2020
$ 486,495 $ - $ 486,495
- 285,409 285,409
486,495 285,409 771,904
3,824,182 53,422 3,877,604
302,670 (266,376) 36,294
258,933 (21,614) 237,319
186,118 - 186,118
141,469 - 141,469
80,188 (69,934) 10,254
4,793,560 (304,502) 4,489,058
2.389.319 (273,630) 2,115,689
2,404,241 (30,872) 2,373,369
$ 2,890,736 $ 254537 $ 3,145273

Depreciation expense was charged as an operating expense to each fund as

follows:

Operating fund

Prevention and treatment of
substance abuse program

Narcotic treatment program

Counseling services

Other non-major funds

TOTAL
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$ 1,327
94,624
2,762

10,799
54,290
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JUNE 30, 2020

NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2020, the Agency has a note payable to Mechanics Bank for the
Sonoma Avenue property (Genesis House), interest at 6.44% per annum, due in
monthly instaliments of $7,173, including interest through 2024 at which time all
outstanding principal and interest are due and payable.

Outstanding balance $ 932,267
Less current portion 26,765

Total noncurrent portion of
Genesis House note payable $ 905,502

Total interest charged to expense during the year ended June 30, 2020,
amounted to $65,496.

On April 30, 2020, the Agency was granted a loan (PPP Loan) from Mechanics
Bank in the amount of $818,005, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) under Division A, Title | of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27,
2020.

The PPP Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 30, 2020, matures on
April 30, 2022, and bears interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly
commencing on November 30, 2020. The Note may be prepaid at any time prior
to maturity with no prepayment penalties. Funds from the PPP Loan may only be
used for payroll costs, costs used to continue group health care benefits,
mortgage payments, rent, utilities, and interest on other debt obligations. The
Company intends to use the entire PPP Loan amount for qualifying expenses.
Under the terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the PPP Loan may be forgiven if
they are used for qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act.

Outstanding balance $ 818,005
Less current portion 359,761

Total noncurrent portion of
PPP Loan payable 458,244
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NOTE PAYABLE (Continued)

Long-term debt repayments for years ending June 30 are approximately as
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2021 $ 386,526 $ 67,831
2022 486,784 59,643
2023 30,434 55,643
2024 846,528 18,106

TOTAL $1.750.272 $ 201,22

Under the terms of the credit agreement, there are various reporting and financial
covenants. At June 30, 2020, the Agency was in compliance with the debt
covenants.

GRANTS FROM MONTEREY COUNTY

The Agency receives various grants from the Department of Social Services of
the County of Monterey. For the specific grants listed below, certain procedures
were applied to the federal and other funding expenses reported under these
grants.

Total Federal Other
Grantor, Program and Term Amount Funding Funding

County of Monterey DSS,
Community Action
Partnership- Youth Engagement :
July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020 $ 58,955 $ 13,636 $ 45319

County of Monterey DSS,
Community Action
Partnership- Youth Shelter
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020 $ 30,000 $ - $ 30,000

County of Monterey DSS,
Parent Education
July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020 $ 18,000 $ 18,000 $ -

County of Monterey DSS,
Commercially Sexually
Exploited Children
July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020 $ 105,857 $ 52,929 $ 52,928
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grants

The Agency received financial assistance from federal and other government
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these
programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in
the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the
General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect
on the overall financial position of the Agency at June 30, 2020.

Litigation

The Agency is involved in litigation arising from the normal course of business.
In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation
pending is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the overall financial
position of the Agency at June 30, 2020.

Operating Leases

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Agency leased buildings for its
Outpatient Drug Treatment Programs, Off Main Clinic Methadone Program and
Family Service Center Salinas counseling office, Street Outreach Salinas
Program office, Sober Living Residential Program as well as its Administrative
office. In addition, during March 2019, the Agency leased a passenger van for
the Safe Passage Program.

The minimum future net lease commitments for the year ending June 30 are
approximately as follows:

Year Ending Lease
June 30, Payment
2021 $ 255,384
2022 110,798
2023 97,560
2024 99,996

TOTAL 563,738
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

In lieu of Social Security, the Agency maintains a contributory defined
contribution pension plan for its employees. During the current year, the agency
contributed 5% of gross wages for eligible employees (those who work at least
30 hours per week on a permanent basis). Eligible employees must also
contribute a minimum of 2.5% of their gross pay, but may contribute up to
$18,500 for 2020, with an additional $5,500 if age 50 or older. Ineligible
employees must contribute 7.5% of their gross pay.

Until December 31, 2018, the Agency contracted with the Nationwide Trust
Company to purchase a group annuity contract which is individually allocated.
Under this contract, a provision is made for the accumulation of contract values
for the Agency to provide fixed annuity accumulation and benefits to the
individual participants. Actual annuity payments commencing on retirement may
be on a variable basis or on a fixed basis as determined by each individual
contract owner. The amount available in each participant’s account at the time of
his or her retirement is the total of the amounts contributed by both the employer
and employee, plus returns on the investments of those contributions.

As of January 1, 2019, the Agency contracted with Ascensus to provide
administration of the contributory defined contribution pension plan.

The Agency’s contribution to the plan amounted to $176,891 for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and is equal to 100% of the required contribution. Total payroll
was $3,555,720 and covered payroll was $3,294,715.

JOINT POWERS AGENCY MEMBERS

The Agency’s Board of Directors is made up of representative<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>